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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Fullerton India Home Finance Company
Limited (the ‘Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view, in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards specifted under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit and other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (the ‘ICATI’) together with the cthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of these
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.
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Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters:

Key audit matter

Effective 1 April 2018, the Company adopted the
Ind AS notified by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs with the transition date of 1 Aprif 2017.

The following are the major impact areas for the
Company upoen transition:

* C(Classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilitics

¢ Measurement of loan losses (expected credit
losses)

* Accounting for loan fees and costs

e Additional disclosures as per the
requirements of the new financial reporting
framiework

Transition to the new financial reporting
framework (Ind AS) is an intricate process
involving multiple decision points for
management i.e: Ind AS 10}, First Time
Adoption prescribes choices and exemptions for
first time application of Ind AS principles at the
transition date,

We identified the transition date accounting as a
key audit matter because of the significant degree
of management judgment in the first time
application of Ind AS principles as at the
transition date particularly in the areas noted
above and the additional disclosures associated
with transition to Ind AS.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Transition date accounting — adoption of new accounting framework (Ind AS)

Refer to the accounting policies in the Financial Statements: Significant accounting policies -Basis of
preparation and Note 34 to the financial statements: “First time adoption of Ind AS”

Our key audit procedures included:

Design / controls

Assessed the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal financial controls over
management’s evaluation of transition date choices
and exemptions availed in line with the principles
under Ind AS 101.

We have also noticed the approvals of Audit
Committee for the choices and exemptions made by
the Company for compliance/acceptability under
Ind AS 101.

Substantive tests

Evaluated management’s transition date choices
and exemptions for compliance / acceptability under
Ind AS 101;

Understood the methodology implemented by
management to give impact on the transition;

Test checked the computations associated with the
transition adjustments;

Assessed areas of significant estimates and
management judgement in line with principles
under Ind AS:

Compared the reasonableness of management
assumptions in respect of classification and
measurement of financial instruments, expected
credit loss model, cash settled share based

payments, etc.
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Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment of portfolio loans

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1.C.2 to the Standalone Financial Statements: Impairment and
write off”, “Note 1.B.v to the Standalone Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Policies- use of
estimates and judgments”, Note 28 to the Standalone Financial Statements: Impairment on financial
instruments™ and “Note 48 to the Standalone Financial Statements: Financial Risk Management — Credit

Risk”

Subjective estimate

Recognition and measurement of impairment on
portfolio loans involves significant management
judgement.

With the applicability of Ind AS 109 credit loss
assessment is now based on Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) model. The Company’s impairment
allowance is derived from estimates including
historical default and loss ratios. Management
exercises judgement in determining the quantum
of loss based on a range of factors.

The most significant factors are :

Segmentation of loan book
Loan staging criteria
Calculation of probability of defauli /
Loss given default

o Consideration of probability weighted
scenarios and forward looking macro-
economic factors including use of
management overlay

There is a significant increase in the data inputs
required for the computation of ECL. This
increases the risk of completeness and accuracy
of the data that has been used as a basis of
assumptions in the model. Use of alternative data
points further increases management’s judgment
and estimates thereof.

Given the size of loan portfolio relative to the
balance sheet and the impact of impairment
allowance on the financial statements, we have
considered impairment of portfolio loans as a key
audit matter.

Our audit procedures included:

Design / controls

Understood management’s new / revised processes
and system implemented in relation to impairment
allowance;

Assessed the design and operating effectiveness of
key internal financial controls over impairment
allowance calculation including governance
controls over the development of the ECL model,

Test checked management review controls over
measurement of impairment allowances and
disclosures in financial statements.

Substantive tests

Evaluated the appropriateness of the impairment
principles based on the requirements of Ind AS
109, our business understanding and industry
practice;

Engaged our financial risk modelling specialists to
test the methodology of the ECL model and
reasonableness of assumptions used;

Performed test of details over calculation of
impairment allowance to check reasonableness of
assumptions used in the ECL model,

Re-performed calculation of ECL model on test
check basis;

Evaluated management’s judgment in the
determination of ECL including methodology,
segmentation, economic factors, period of
historical loss rates used and loss emergence
periods;

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures relating to
ECL.

(%
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Information technology

IT systems and controls relating to Loan Our audit procedures to assess the IT system controls
Management System relating to Loan Management System included the

The Company’s processes on sanctions, [ollowing:

disbursements and recovery of portfolio loans are e  Evaluated the design of General IT controls i.e.

highly dependent on the automated controis in access management, change management,
information systems, such that there exists a risk program development and computer operations
that gaps in the IT control environment could and IT application controls i.e. controls on system
result in the financial accounting and reporting generated reports and system / application
records being materially misstated. The processing over key financial accounting and
Company uses Loan Management Systems to reporting related to loans.

manage its portfolio loans. e Tested a sample of key internal financial controls

operating over the information technology in
relation to Loan Management System, including
granting access right, new user creation, removal
of user rights and preventative controls designed to
enforce segregation of duties and system change
management.

Due to the large transaction volumes and the
increasing challenge to protect the integrity of the
Company’s systems and data, controls over data
integrity has become more significant.

We have focused on program development, user
access management, change management, * Engaged our IT and Data & Analytics specialists
segregation of duties and system application to evaluate the design, implementation and
controls over loan management systems. operating effectiveness of the significant accounts
related selected IT automated controls which are
core to automated computation carried out by the
I'T system and the consistency of data transmission.

We have identified ‘IT system and controls’ as

key audit matters since the Company relies on

automated processes and controls for recording

of portfolio loans. e Other areas that were independently assessed
included password policies, controls over changes
to applications and databases and that business
users, developers and production support did not
have access to change applications, the operating
system or databases in the production
environment.

Other information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Director’s report and management
discussion & analysis section — “Analysis of the Financial Statements™, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

[n connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially.
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report

in this regard.
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Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134 (5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, profit / loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued
thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

[n preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s repott
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness

of such controls.
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Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the financial statements (Continued)

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FFrom the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) in ouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account;
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements (Continued)

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31 March
2019 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors are disqualified
as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act and

f} with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controis, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B”.

(B} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at 31 March 2019 on its
financial position in the financial statements — refer note 40 to the financial statements;

ii.  the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company and

iv.  the disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016
have not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial
year ended 31 March 2019.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and as per the
special resolution passed by the Company as at its extra ordinary general meeting, as further
explained in note 35 to the financial statements, the remuneration paid by the Company to its
Directors during the current year is in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. The Ministry of Corporate
Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197 (16) of the Act which are required
to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accouniants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

cﬂf)hﬂ @

Milind Ranade
Mumbai Partrner

28 May 2019 . Membership No: 100564



BSR&Co.LLP

Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report — 31 March 2019

(Referred to in our report of even date)

i

iii.

vi.

vii.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment.

() According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a
regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment by
which all the property, plant and equipment are verified annually. In our opinion,
this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(©) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of
immovable properties recorded as property, plant and equipment in the books of
account of the Company are held in the name of the Company.

The Company is in the business of providing housing finance services and consequently,
does not hold any inventories. Thus, paragraph 3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Thus, paragraph
3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not advanced
any loan, given any guarantee or provided any security in connection with loan to any of
its Directors or to any person in whom the Director is interested. The Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, with respect to the investments
made, as applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted deposits as per the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and Rules
framed there under. Thus, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section
148 (1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur
examination of the books of account, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including employee’s state
insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, cess and other material statutory
dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorities except provident fund which is deposited with appropriate
authority with few delays. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues
on account of sales tax, wealth tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value
added tax. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employee’s state
insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, cess and other material statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

8 17
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Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report — 31 March 2019
(Continued)

viii.

ix.

x1.

xil.

xiit.

Xiv.

XV.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
provident fund, income tax, goods and services tax, employee’s state insurance
cess and other material statutory dues which have not been deposited by the
Company on account of disputes.

On the basis of examination of relevant records and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowing to financial institution, bank or debenture holders. During the year, the
Company did not have any loans or borrowing from the government.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised
any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

Further, monies raised by the Company by way of debt instruments and term loans were
applied for the purpose for which those were raised, though idle / surplus funds which
were not required for immediate utilisation were invested in liquid assets.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officer or employees, noticed or reported
during the year, now have been informed of such case by the management.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the special resolution
passed at its extra ordinary general meeting, as further explained in Note 35 to the financial
statements, the Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in accordance
with the requisite approvais mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company as per the Act. Thus, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions entered into by the Company with the related
parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records, the Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or allotted fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Thus, paragraph 3
(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with Directors or person connected with him. Thus, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.
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Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report — 31 March 2019
(Continued)

xvi.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company being a housing finance company is
registered with National Housing Bank and is not required to be registered under Section
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

] Fd

Milind Ranade
Mumbai Partner
28 May 2019 Membership No: 100564
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Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report — 31 March 2019

(Referred to in our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (°the Act®)

(Referred to in paragraph (A.f.) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Fullerton
India Home Finance Company Limited (the ‘Company’} as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2019, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’).

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal financial control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

eITor.
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Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements,

Meaning of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

The company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide a reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and Directors of the company and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

lnf B3

Milind Ranade
Mumbai Partner
28 May 2019 Membership No: 100564
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Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2019

As at As at As at
Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 O1 Aprif 2017
(T fakhs) (% lakhs) (% lakhs})
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2 9,461 349 1,603
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 5,006 5,356 4,545
Investments 4 31,238 4,742 28,648
Trade receivables 5 62 26 -
Dther financial assets 5 521 394 87
Loans and advances 7 2,96,731 1,87,488 46,873
3,43,019 1,98,355 81,756
Non financial assets
Current tax assets 8 328 32 9
Deferred tax asset (net) 9 1,497 1,287 -
Other non-financiai assets 10 823 347 41
Property, plant and equipment 11 1,010 13% 53
Intangible assets 12 84 10 13
3,743 1,215 116
Total Assats 3,46,762 2,00,170 B1,872
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 13
i) total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and smal! enterprises - - -
i) total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and 782 452 334
small enterprises
Debt Securities 14 74,988 38,346 -
Borrowings 15 201,111 05,525 34,638
Other financial lrabilities 16 19,252 30,504 12,301
2,96,133 1,64,827 47,273
Non financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities 17 7 &5 -
Pravisions 18 94 59 39
Other non-financial liabilities 19 823 543 317
924 667 356
Equity
Equity share capital 20 24,536 19,527 19,527
Other equity 21 25,169 15,149 14,716
49,705 34,676 34,243
Total liabilities and equity 3,46,762 2,00,170 81,872
Summary of significant accounting policies and accompanying notes which form an 1-50
integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached,
ForBSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Fullertort India Home Finance Company Limited
Vel

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 1:)/248W/W-100022

i ’f‘ﬁ“g

Milind Ranade
Partner
Membership No.: 100564

Pface: Mumbai
Date: 28 May 2019
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Chairman
DIN : 000193,

(VST TR

Pankaj Malik

Chief Finantial Officer

Place: Mumbai

Date: 28 May 2019

Séema Sarda

Company Secretary
ICSI Reg. No. : A-15056




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019

Revenue from operations
Interest income
Commission income
Net gain on financial assets at FVTPL
Ancillary income
Total revenue from operations

Other income
Total Income

Expenses
Finance costs
Impairment on financial instruments
Ernployee benefits expense
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense
Current tax
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods
Deferred tax expense / (credit}

Net profit after tax

Other comprehensive income / {loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss, net of tax
Re-measurement of gain/loss on defined benefit plans
Income tax relating to above

Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income

Earnings per equity share:
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
Face value per share (in X)

Summary of significant accounting policies and accompanying notes which
form an integral part of the financial statements

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
{% lakhs) (% lakhs)
22 30,762 12,955
23 359 151
24 1,072 236
25 545 219
32,738 13,561
26 242 129
32,980 13,690
27 18,388 5,993
28 4,351 2,807
29 5,662 2,966
11812 234 42
30 4,049 2,225
32,684 14,033
296 (343)
a1
458 524
{210 {1,291)
248 (767)
48 424
32
(19) 9
(19) 9
29 433
33
0.02 0,22
0.02 0.22
10.00 10.00
1-50

As per our report of even date attached.

ForBSR & Co. L1P
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

c.:’%")v'n "} %‘”“’/

Milind Ranade -
Partner
Membership No.: 100564

Place: Mumbai
Cate: 28 May 2019

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Fullertor: India Home Finance Company Limit

-

indo
Chairman
DIN : 00019

herjee

o teeef
Pankaj Malik
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Murrbai
Date: 28 May 2019

& Whole Time Director

DIN : 01225230

f N
ﬁ}g\; Sarda

Company Secretary
IC5I Reg, No, : A-15056
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Fullerton India Home Finance tompany Limited
Statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2019

A

o

CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for ;

Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Financial liabllities measured at amortised cost
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Interest income on fixed deposits, bonds and investments
Disocunt en commercial papers

Net {gain)/lass on firancial assets at FVTPL
Impairment on financial instruments

Write off of fixed assets & intengible assets

Fair valuation of AR Hability

Amortisation of ancillary borrowing costs
Operating profit befcre working capital changes

Adjustments for warking capital:

-{Increase)/decrease in loans and advances

-{Increase)/ decrease in other Assets (Finarcials & Nan - Financial assets)

- {Increase)/decrease in trade racefvables

- Increase/{decrease] in other lizhilitles [Provision and Financiz| & Non- Finaneial liabilities)

Cash {used)/generated from operating activities
Income tax paid (net)
Net cash (used)/gencrated from operating activities {a)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESFING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property plant and equipment and intangibles
Purchase of investments

Sale/maturity of investments

Fixed deposit placed durlng the vear

Fixed deposit matured during the year

Interest recelved on fixed deposits and bands

Interast received on investments

Net cash {used) /generated from investing activities (B)

- CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Praceeds from issuance of share capital {including share premium}
Proceeds from botrowings from banks and financial institutions
Repayment of borrewings from banks and financlal institutions
Payment of ancillary borrowing cests

Net cash (used)/generated in financing activities {C)

Net increase / [decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [D = (A+B+)]
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the period (E)
Closing balanca of ¢ash and cash equivalents (D+E)

Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand

Balances with banks

-in current accounts

- in fixed deposit with maturity Jess than 3 months
Cash and cash equivalents

Note:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
{% lakhs}) (X lakhs)
296 (343)
1821) {357)
2 (44)
234 42
{694) (921)
1,281 353
{1,072) 2)
4,251 2,807
1 -
321 20
- 20
3,799 1575
(1,11,112) {1,47,861)
(319) 2,355
(26) -
{10,608) 21458
[1,18,276) (1,22,433)
{1,000) (477)
{1,18,276} 11,22,910)
(1,180} (125)
[17,15,647} 4,121,500}
16,895,250 4,36,363
{6,500} {1,567}
6,567 1,000
486 100
440 -
(26,584) 24,271
15,000 .
1,89,000 1,014,175
{48,500} (3,750
(528) (40)
1,54,972 97,385
9,112 (1,254)
349 1,603
9,461 349
9,461 349
9,461 349

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows, Effective 1 April 2017, the
Company adepted the amendment to ind AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes In liabilities arising
from finarcing activities, Including both changes arising fram cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconclliation betwern the opening and tlosing balances
in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activitles, to meet the disclosure requirement, The adoption of amendment did not have any matetial impact on the

financiz! statements. {Refer note 15 (b] for net debt reconciliation)

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No,: 10} 248W/W-100022

o
cff"“
Milind Ranade
Fartner
Membership No.: 100564

Py

Place: Mumbal
Date: 28 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of;
Fulterton India Home Finance Company Limit,

Anindo
Chairman
DIN : 00019375

kherjee

ookl

Pankaj Mallk
Chief FInanclal Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 May 2019

CEC & W
DIN-11225230

w

Seema Sarda
Company Secretary
ICS! Reg. No. : A-15056

Rakesh Makkar

Time Director




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

-

1. Notes to Financial Statements

A. Company information

Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited (‘the Company’} is a public limited Company domiciled in
India and incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company is a Housing finance
Company {‘HFC’) registered vide Registration number 07.0122.15 dated 14 July, 2015 with the National
Housing Board {'NHB’). Registered address of the Company is Fullerton India Home Finance Company
Limited, 3™ Floor, No 165, Megh Towers, Poonamallee High Road, Maduravoyal, Chennai. The Company
provides loans to customers for purchase of new home, home improvément loans, home construction, home
extensions, loans against property (collectively referred to as “Portfolio Loans”).

As at 31 March 2019, Fullerton India Credit Limited, the holding Company owned 100% of the Company’s
equity share capital.

B. Basis of preparation

i.  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared, on a going concern basis, in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS} as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {the "Act"), other relevant provisions of the Act, guidelines issued by the NHB
Directions 2010 as applicable to an HFCs and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements up to and for the year ended 31 March 2018 were prepared in accordance with
accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Act, the relevant rules thereunder, other relevant
provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the NHB as applicable to an HFCs (Previous GAAP).

These are the first Ind AS financial statements of the Company prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Ind
AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied. Refer note 34 for an
explanation of how the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s previously
reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

ii. Presentation of financial statements

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of changes in equity are presented
in the format prescribed in the Schedule 1ll vide their Notification G.5.R. 1022(E) dated 11 October 2018
for Non —Banking Financial Companies in Division [ll to the Act. The statement of cash flow has been
presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or
settlement within 12 months after the reporting date and more than 12 months after the reporting date
is presented in Note 49.

iif. Functional and presentation currency

Indian rupees is the Company’s functional currency and the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates. Accordingly, the management has determined that
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest
lakhs upto two decimal places, unless ctherwise indicated.




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

iv. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial instruments {as explained in | Fair value

the accounting policies below)
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

Liabilities for cash settled share based | Fair value

payments

v.  Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates, assumptions and exercise judgement in applying the accounting policies that affect the
reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial
statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.

The Management believes that these estimates are prudent and reasonable and are based upon the
Management's best knowledge of current events and actions. Actual results could differ from these
estimates and differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the periods in which
the results are known or materialized.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about critical judgments, assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 March 2019 is included in the following
notes to the policy :

Note 1.C.2 ~ financial instruments — Fair values, risk management and impairment of financials assets
Note 1.C.7 - recognition of deferred tax assets;

Note 1.C.8 — estimates of useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets;

Note 1.C.9 — Impairment test of non-financial assets : key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts
including the recoverability of expenditure on intangible assets;

Note 1.C.10 — measurement of defined benefit obligation : key actuarial assumptions and cash settled —
share based payments and

Note 1.C.11 — recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies : key assumptions about
the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources, if any

vi. Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or Ilabllrty if. market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset 0r Ilablilty at the
measurement date. : .5

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the meas' -ement of falr va |
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

C.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
Measurement of fair value includes determining appropriate valuation techingues.

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that
would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

Valuation modeis that employ significant unobservable inputs require a higher degree of judgment and
estimation in the determination of fair value. Judgment and estimation are usually required for selection
of the appropriate valuation methodology, determination of expected future cash flows on the financial
instrument being valued, determination of probability of counterparty default and selection of
appropriate discount rates.

The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation technigques. When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses
observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a
liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categarized
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair vaiue hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes to accounts:

Note 48 - Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

MNote 38 - Cash settled share based payments

Significant accounting policies

1. Revenue Recognition

Interest income
The Company calculates interest income using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.
The effective interest rate method

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments
measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount of the financial instrument.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition, commission, fees and costs incremental and directly attributable to the specific
lending arrangement.

The Company recognizes interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a- -
constant rate of return over the expected life of the financial asset. The future cash flows are estimated
taking into account all the contractual terms of the asset. If expectations regarding the c:ejsh flows on the




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk. The adjustment is booked as a positive or
negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction
in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortized through interest income in the statement of
profit and loss.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, the Company calculates
interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision} of the
financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to
calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Interest income on financial assets classified as FVTPL is recognized at contractual interest rate of financial
instruments.

Penal/additional interest on default in payment of dues by customer is recognized on realization basis.

Fee income

Loan processing fee/document fees/stamp fees which are integral part of financials assets are recognized
through effective interest rate over the term of the loan. For the agreements foreclosed or transferred
through assignment, the unamortized portion of the fee is recognized as income to the Statement of profit
and loss at the time of such foreclosure/transfer through assignment. Applications fee is recognized at the
commencement of the contracts. Additional charges such as penal, dishonor, foreclosure charges, delayed
payment charges etc. are recognized on realization basis.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized as and when the right to receive payment is established.

Net gain from financial assets at FVTPL

The realised gain from financial instruments at FVTPL represents the difference between the carrying
amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the reporting periad, or the transaction price if it was
purchased in the current reporting period, and its settlement price.

The unrealised gain represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the
beginning of the period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting periad, and its
carrying amount at the end of the reporting period.

Rendering of services

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out In
Ind AS 115 to determine when to recognize revenue and at what amount.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in the contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when
services are provided and it is highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue is not expected to
oceur. :

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable amount, an entity estlmates the amount of:
consideration to Wthh it will be entitled in exchange for rendering the promised serv;ces to;a customer-- An




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

incentives, performance bonuses, or other similar items. The promised consideration can also vary if an
entitlement to the consideration is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of a future event.

Commission income

Commission income earned for the services rendered are recognhized on accrual basis, while rate
conversion charges are recognized upfront based on event occurrence,

2. Financial instruments

¢ Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and liabilities are recognsied when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and lighilities are initially measured at fair value on trade
date basis. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition ar issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial assets or financial
liability. Transaction costs of financial instrument carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss.

e (Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
The Company subsequently classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
* amortised cost;
» Fair value through profit or loss
» fair value through other comprehensive income

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial
assets.

A financial assets is measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR} method if it meets both
of the following conditions :

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCl {designated as FVOCI — equity
investment). This election is made an investment — by — investment basis.

All financials assets not classified and measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate the financials assets
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVQCl or at FVTPL lf domg
so eliminates or significantly reduces the accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. ;




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019 -

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated pclicies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.

— how the performance of the portfolic is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectation about future sales activity.

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognized financial
assets are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect a new business model. The Company
reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether the business models have
changed since the preceding period.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. That principal amount may change over the life of the financial assets (e.g. if there are
payments of principal). Amount ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for
other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
-~ prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets.

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Contractual terms
that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic
lending arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or commodity prices, do not give rise to
contractual cash flows that are SPPi.

A prepayment feature is consistent with the sclely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual
par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents.the
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid} contractual interest (which may also include reasonable

additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of © .
the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition. T R VA




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, -are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss.

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
amortised cost interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved
(other than Equity | by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely
Investments) at payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value
FVOCI through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the

other comprehensive income (OCl). Interest income measured using the EIR
method and impairment losses, if any are recognized in the statement of Profit
and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is
reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as
at FVOCI income in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognized in OC! and are not reclassified to profit or loss,

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

An eguity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds
received.

Financial liabilities are subseguent measured at the amortised cost using the effective interest method,
unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognized as profit or loss respectively.

* Reclassification

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial assets
affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement reguirements related to the new category
apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model
that results in reclassifying the Company’s financial assets. Changes in contractual cash flows are
considered under the accounting policy on Modification and derecognition of financial assets: déscribed
below. TR g '




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

De-recognition
Financial Assets, modification and transfer

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a
financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the
financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flows either
immediately or at a future date. tn addition, the introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an
existing loan would constitute a modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the
cash flows immediately but may affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not met
(e.g. a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises when covenants are breached).

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Profit/premium arising at the time of assignment of portfolio loans, is recognized as an upfront gain/loss.
Interest on retained portion of assigned portfolio is recognized hasis Effective Interest Rate, Service fee
received is accounted for based on the terms of underlying deal structure of transaction.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial ability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liahility based on the modified
terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized as profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabHities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment and write off

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model] for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are measured at amortised cost along with
related undrawn commitments.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commr 1 'ent ;the‘_
Company is reqmred to prowde a loan with pre- spec&fled terms to the customer. Commltment starts fromf_'-;_.__
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The Company recognises loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment
loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. H, in a subsequent period,
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-
month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of & financial assets. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows which the Company expects to receive)} discounted at an
approximation to the EIR.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of
whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.
Company also considers the peers data points to benchmark assessment of expected credit loss.

The Company measures ECL on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar economic risk
characteristics. The measurement of the loss allowance is based on the present value of the assets
expected cash flows using the assets EIR, regardiess of whether it is measured on an individual basis or a
collective basis.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal} recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Write off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
counter party does not have assets or sources of income that could generate cash flows to repay the
amounts, However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

¢ Collateral valuation and repossession

To mitigate the credit risk on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible as per
the Board approved Credit Policy. The Company provides fully secured, partially secured and unsecured
lpans to customers. The parameters relating to acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral is a
part of the Credit Policy of the Company.

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties in its retail
portfolio. For other collaterals, the Company liquidates the assets and recovers the amount due against the
loan. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. '
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3. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement comprise of the cash on hand, call
deposits and other short term, highly liquid securities with an original maturity of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. Cash and cash equivalents consists of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and
usage.

4, leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfiliment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the assets or assets, even if the right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Operating lease

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
asset are classified as Operating lease.

Company as a lessee

Operating lease payments (net of any incentive received from the lessor) are recognized as an expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the lease term unless the payments are
structured fo increase in line with general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary
cost.

5. Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost is calculated using effective interest rate on the amortised cost of the instrument. EIR
includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs, incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

6. Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
Exchange differences, if any, arising out of foreign exchange transactions settled during the period are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the Balance sheet date and exchange gain or
loss arising restatement is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into
the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined.

All resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

7. Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expenses, net change in the deferred tax assets or liabilities
during the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. Current
and deferred taxes are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to business
combinations or to an item that are recognized in Other comprehensive income or directly in Equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in Other comprehensive income or directly in
Equity respectively.
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Current Income taxes

The current income tax includes income taxes payable by the Company computed in accordance with the
tax laws applicable in the jurisdiction in which the Company generate taxable income and any adjustment
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years,

The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enfarceable right to set off
the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred income taxes

Deferred income tax is recognized using Balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amount.

Deferred tax is not recognized for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction;

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be reversed or settled.
Deferred tax asset are recognized to the extent that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utitised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow part of deferred income tax
assets to be utilised. At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It
recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain, as the case
may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can
be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset deferred tax
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India
which is likely to give future economic benefit in the form of availability of setoff against future income tax
liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax assets in the Balance sheet when the assets can be
measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be
realised.

Goods and services tax input credit

Goods and services tax input credit is recognized in the hooks of accounts in the period in which the supply
of goods or service received is recognized and when there is no uncertainty in availing/utilising the credits.
Expenses and assets are recognized net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:

- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or receipt of services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognized as part of the cost.of acquisition of the:
asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable VAR
When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included
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The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

8. Property plant and equipment {including Capital Work-in-Progress) and Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price{after deducting trade
discounts and rebates) including import duties and non-refundable taxes, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working conditton for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Assets acquired which are not ready for intended use as on the reporting date are classified under Capital
work in progress.

Any gain or loss arising from disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is
recognized as profit or loss respectively.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company. All other expenditure is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as incurred.

Depreciation/Amaortization

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is provided on straight-line basis as per the estimated

useful life of the assets as determined by the management, which is in line with Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013 except for certain assets as stated below.

Vehicles * 4

Useful life Useful Life as
estimated per
by the Company Schedule Il
(in years) {in years)
Computer Server and Other Accessories * 4 6
Computer Desktop and Laptops * 3 3
Furniture and Fixtures * 5 10
Office Equipment’s * 5 5
Handheld devices * 2 5 T

* Useful life of the assets has been assessed based on internal assessment, taking into ay__:ic;:c{u-nt tHe\ﬁatu-re'!_ g

Replacement, anticipated technologicat changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenéhfé_e_:‘sappzc'lr__t_féf'c‘,f' B

of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the assét—;,jga's_th‘is__totfy""off
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9.

10.

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease subject to a maximum lease period of
66 months.

Depreciation/Amortization on addition/disposable is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e from/upto the date
on which asset is ready to use /disposed off.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumuiated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortized using the straight line method over a period of five years commencing from
the date on which such asset is first installed.

Impairment on Non Financials Assets

The carrying amount of the non-financial assets other than deferred tax are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal /external factors. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets is
considered as a cash generating unit.

If any indication of impairment exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash
generating unit is made. The recoverable amount of the assets/ Cash generating unit is estimated as the
higher of net selling price and its value in use. Asset/cash generating unit whose carrying value exceeds
their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount by recognising the impairment loss
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. After impairment, depreciation / amortization is
provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

The Company reviews at each reporting date, whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased
or no longer exists. A previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes
in circumstances. However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that
would have prevailed by charging usual depreciation / amortization if there were no impairment.

Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has
a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes includes employees’ state insurance, superannuation
scheme, employee pension scheme. A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under
which the Company pays fixed contributions into an account with a separate entity and has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified periodic contributions to
the credit of the employees’ account with the Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit expensé in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by empi'c')yé:e‘s..
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11,

Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and
deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The caleulation of the defined benefit obligation is performed periodically by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the
recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan {‘the asset ceiling’). In order to
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding
requirements.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return
on plan assets {excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are
recognized in Other Comprehensive income (OCl). The Company determines the net interest expense
/income on the net defined benefit liability/asset for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined
benefit liability/asset, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability /asset during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related
to defined benefit plans are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the
settlernent of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment
benefits, which do not fall due wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related services, is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the
fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an independent
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Phantom Plan

For cash-settled share based payments, the fair value of the amount payable to employees is recognized as
‘employee benefit expenses” with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the vesting period on straight
line basis. The liability is re-measured at each reporting period up to, and including the settlement date,
with changes in fair value recognized in employee benefits expenses. Refer Note 38 for details.

Provisions (other than for employee benefits), contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are ?’i‘éfc,;d’ist\uhté:I;l:_,_
to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle thg;.b{bligétion at_'t'h'e._i.
reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to :;'fe'ﬂ:g_fc_’_cﬁthe currept ..
Lastimates. ERR R
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12.

13.

14.

A contingent Hability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has an inherent risk of
litigation to its operations and in the ordinary course of the Company’s business. Given the subjectivity and
uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into account a
number of factors including tegal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar
incidents.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, it is disclosed
only when an inflow of economic benefits is highly probable.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order {net of advances) issued to the counterparties for
supplying/development of asset and amount of undisbursed portfolio loans.

Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed at each reporting date,
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing profit after tax (excluding other comprehensive income)
attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the vear.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing profit after tax (excluding other comprehensive income)
attributable to the equity shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or
income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which
could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are
deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to eguity shares would decrease the profit per share.

Operating Segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker {CODM). The CODM’s function is to allocate the resources of the Company and
assess the performance of the operating segments of the Company.

Dividend on equity shares

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is
authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in
India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders except in case of interim
dividend. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.
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D. Recent Accounting Development

Standards issued but not yet effective

Following are the new standards and amendments to existing standards (as notified by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA}.on March 30, 2019 as part of the Companies {ind AS) Amendment Rules, 2019)
which are effective for the annual period beginning from April 01, 2019. The Company intends to adopt
these standards and amendments from the effective date.

Ind AS 116 - Leases:

Ind AS 116 is applicable for financial reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019 and replaces
existing lease accounting guidance, namely Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 introduces a single, on-balance
sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use (“ROU”) asset representing its
right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
The nature of expenses related to those leases will change as Ind AS 116 replaces the operating lease
expense (i.e. rent) with depreciation charge for ROU assets and interest expense on lease liabilities. There
are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and [eases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains
similar to the current standard —i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.

The Company plans to apply Ind AS 116 on April 01, 2019, using the prospective approach. Therefore, the
ROU asset is measured at an amount egual to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognized in the balance sheet immediately before the date
of initial application

The Company is in the process of analysing the impact of new lease standard on its financial statements.

Amendments to existing Ind AS:

The following amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements. This assessment is based on currently available information and is subject to
changes arising from further reasonable and supportable information being made available to the
Company when it adopts the respective amended standards.

i. Amendment to ind AS 12 Income Taxes:

Income tax consequences of distribution of profits (i.e dividends), including payments on financial
instruments classified as equity, should be recognized when a liability to pay dividend is recognized.

The income tax consequences should be recognized in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or
equity according to where the past transactions or events that generated distributable profits were
originally recognized.

Appendix C has been added to Ind AS 12 which seeks to bring clarity to the accounting for uncertainties
on income tax treatments that are vyet to be accepted by tax authorities and to reflect it in the
measurement of current and deferred taxes.

ii. Amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments:

A financial asset would be classified and measured at amortised cost or at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive [ncome [FVOCI) if its contractual cash flows are solely in the nature of principle and
interest on the principle amount outstanding (SPP! criterion).

An exception has been prescribed to the classification and measurement requirements with respect to
the SPPI criterion for financial assets that:

~-Have a prepayment feature which results in a negative compensation,

-Apart from the prepayment feature, other features of the financial asset would hq?é Vg;:.g_n’tractual_:_"
flows which would meet the SPPI criterion, and L /
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-The fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant when the entity initially recognises the financial
asset. If this is impracticable to assess based on facts and circumstances that existed on initial recognition
of the asset, then the exception would not be available.

Such financial assets could be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI based on the business model
within which they are held.

jiii. Amendments to Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits

When a defined benefit plan is amended, curtailed or settled, entities would be required to use updated
actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the
annual reporting period (post the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement}.

The effect of the asset ceiling would not be considered while calculating the gain or loss on any
settlement of the ptan. Subsequently, it would be recognized in other comprehensive income.

iv. Amendments to Ind AS 23 Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost eligible for capitalization

- Clarification that in computing the capitalization rate for funds borrowed generally, the Company
should exclude borrawing costs applicable to borrowings made specifically for obtaining a qualifying
asset, only until the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs related to specific
borrowings that remain outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for intended use or for
sale would subsequently be considered as part of the general borrowing cost of the Company.

- Transitional provision: The Company applying Ind AS 23 should apply the amendments to the
borrowing costs incurred on or after the date the Company first applies the amendments.

The amendments that are not yet effective, made to the the following existing standards, does not have
any impact on the Company’s financial statements :

- Ind AS 28 Investments in associates and joint ventures

- Ind AS 103 Business Combinations and

- Ind AS 111 loint arrangements

2. Cash and cash Equivalents

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(X lakhs) {X fakhs) (X lakhs)

Cash on hand - - -
Balances with banks

- in current accounts 9,461 349 503
- in deposit with maturity less than 3 months - - 1,100
Total 9,461 349 . -.1,603
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3. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(X lakhs) (X lakhs) (% lakhs)
Deposit with maturity of more than 3 month but 5 - -
fess than 12 months
Deposit with maturity of more than 12 months 5,001 5,356 4,545
Total 5,006 5,356 4,545
4. iInvestments
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(% lakhs) (% lakhs) (X lakhs)

Measured at fair value through profit and loss
Units of Mutual funds

93,604.460 (31 March 2018: Nil; 1 April 2017:
Nil} units of Rs, 1,000 each in DSP Liquidity 2,503 - -
Fund Option - Direct Plan - Growth
66,116.578 (31 March 2018: Nil; 1 April 2017:
Nil) units of Rs. 10 each in Kotak Liguid - Direct 2,502 - -
Plan - Growth

Measured at fair value through profit and loss

Unqguoted: Certificate of depaosits

5,000 (31 March 2018: 2,500; 1 April 2017:
2,500} units of Rs. 100,000 each of Axis Bank 4,869 2,348 2,469
Limited

5,000 (31 March 2018; 2,500; 1 April 2017:
7,500} units of Rs, 100,000 each of ICICI Bank 4,813 2,394 7,319
Limited

7,500 (31 March 2018: Nil; 1 April 2017: 3,000)
units of Rs. 100,000 each of IDFC Bank Limited
10,000 (31 March 2018: Nil; 1 April 2017: Nil)
units of Rs. 100,000 each of INDUSIND BANK
Nil (31 March 2018: Nil; 1 Aprif 2017: 5,000)
units of Rs. 100,000 each of NABARD

Nit (31 March 2018: Nil; 1 April 2017: 2,500)
units of Rs. 100,000 each of Kotak Mahindra - - 2,469
Bank Limited

Nil (31 March 2018: Nil; 1 April 2017: 2,500)
units of Rs. 100,000 each of Credit Suisse

Nil (31 March 2018: Nil; 1 April 2017: 4,000)
units of Rs, 100,000 each of SIDBI

Nil (31 March 2018: Nil; 1 April 2017: 2,500)
units of Rs. 100,000 each of HDFC Bank

7,142 - 2,964

9,409 - -

Total 31,238 a782 [0
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5. Trade Receivables

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(% lakhs) (% lakhs) (X lakhs)
Receivables considered good - Secured - - -
Receivables considered good - Unsecured 62 26 -
Less: Provision for impairment - - -
Total 62 26 -

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or
jointly with any other person. Also, no trade or other receivables are due from firms or private companies
respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

6. Other Financial Assets

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
{X lakhs) (X lakhs) (% lakhs)
Security Deposits 108 2 -
Interest Accrued on Investment 210 158 16
Others 203 234 71
Total 521 394 87
Loans and Advances
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(X lakhs} (% lakhs) (X lakhs)
Loans carried at amortized cost
{i} Loans repayable on Demand - - -
{ii) Portfolio Loans* 301,309 190,814 47,434
Total Gross 301,309 190,814 47,434
Less- Impairment allowance {4,578) (3,326) (561)
Total Net 296,731 187,488 46,873
(i} Secured by tangible assets 296,731 187,488 46,873
{ii)Secured by intangible assets - - -
{iii) Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees - - -
{iv) Unsecured - - -
Total (B)-Gross 296,731 187,488 46,873
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (B)-Net 296,731 187,488 46,873 |

* All the loans are disbursed in India and there are no loans issued to public sector.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
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8. Current tax assets

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(X lakhs) (X lakhs) (X lakhs)
Advance tax {net of provision) 329 32 9
Total 329 32 9

Advance tax (net of provision} of 32 lakhs for FY 2018 has been reclassified from Provision for tax (net

of advance tax).

9. Deferred tax (Net)

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(X lakhs) (% lakhs) {% lakhs)

Deferred tax asset arising on account of :

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement
of profit and loss in the current year but allowed 27 11 -
for tax purposes on payment basis

Provision for diminution in the value of i 5

investments

Irnpac"c on application of expected credit loss on 1,284 1,052 i
financial assets

Rent Equalisation reserve 6 - -
Processing fee and LOC adjustments related to

. . . 479 305 -
financial assets at amortised cost

Provision for expenses disallowed as per 109 ) i
Income-tax Act, 1961

Fair valuation of SAR liability - 6 -
Provision for security deposits 1 - -
Preliminary expenses 14 33 -
Total deferred tax assets (A) 1,920 1,409 -
Deferred tax liability arising on account of :

Difference in book value of PPE 8 6 -
Borrowing cost adjustments related to financial

g . 164 40 -
liabilities at amortised cost

Fair valuation of loans assigned 184 - -

_Special Reserve created as per section 29C of

NHB Act, 1987 and claimed as deduction u/s 36 67 76 -
{1) {viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 423 122 -
Deferred tax assets (net) (A-B) 1,497 1,287 -
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
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10. Other Non-Financial Assets

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(X lakhs) {% lakhs) (X Iakhs)

Advances recovgrable in cash or in kind ar for 84 33 g

value to be received

Surplus in gratuity fund

Prepayments 187 49 16

Capital advances 1 - 6

Advances to employees 2 1 0

Others 549 264 10

Total 823 347 41

11. Property, Plant and Equipment
(X lakhs)
. Office Furniture Computers | Leasehoid _
Particulars . . & Improvem | Vehicles Land * Total
Equipments | & Fixtures i
Accessories ents

Gross block
Balance as at 01 April 2017 - 13 46 - - - 53
Additions 1 24 43 6 45 6 125
Deletions - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 1 37 83 6 45 6 178
Additions 125 407 265 287 2 - 1,092
Deletions - (2) - - - - (2)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 126 442 348 293 53 6 1,268
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2017 - - - - - - -
Depreciation charge 1 9 23 1 5 - 39
Deletions - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 1 9 23 1 5 - 39
Depreciation charge 16 55 89 49 11 - 220
Deletions - {1) - - - - (1)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 17 63 112 50 16 - 258
Net block
Balance as at 01 April 2017 - 13 40 - - - 53
Balance as at 31 March 2018 0 28 &0 5 40 6 139
Balance as at 31 March 2019 109 379 236 243 37 6 1,010

*Pledged as security against secured non -convertible debenture.

The Company has availed the deemed cost exemption as per Ind AS 101 in relation to the Property'Pl'aht and
Equipment as on the date of transition (April 01, 2017} and hence the net block of carrying amount as at March
31, 2017 has been considered as the gross block of carrying amount on the date of transition: Refer note beiow
regross block value and the accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2017 under the pre\nous ‘GAAP. a2
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
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Particulars Gross block Accumulated Net block

(% lakhs) depreciation (X lakhs) (% lakhs)
Property, plant and equipment
Furniture & fixtures 15 2 13
Computer & accessories b1 21 40
Total 76 23 53

As per management assessment there are no probable scenario in which the recoverable amount of asset would
decrease below the carrying amount of asset. Consequently no impairment required.

12, Intangible assets

(% lakhs)
Particulars Computer Software Total
Gross block
Balance as at 01 April 2017 13 13
Additions - -
Deletions - -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 13 13
Additions 88 88
Deletions - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 101 101
Amortization
Balance as at 01 April 2017 - -
Amortization 3 3
Deletions - -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 3 3
Amortization 14 14
Deletians - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 17 17
Net block
Balance as at 01 April 2017 13 13
Balance as at 31 March 2018 10 10
Balance as at 31 March 2019 84 24

The Company has availed the deemed cost exemption as per Ind AS 101 in relation to the Intangible assets as on
the date of transition {Aprit 01, 2017) and hence the net block of carrying amount as at March 31, 2017 has been
considered as the gross block of carrying amount on the date of transition. Refer note below for the gross block
value and the accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2017 under the previous GAAP.

(X lakhs)
Particulars Gross block Accumulated Net block
depreciation

Intangible assets

Computer software 14 1

As per management assessment there are no probable scenario in Wthh the recoverable an unt of

agsiiwould :
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13. Trade Payables*®

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(% lakhs) {% 1akhs) (X lakhs)

Due to micro and small enterprises { refer Note

54) - - -
Due to (I:redltors other than micro and small 782 457 334
enterprises

Total 782 452 334

*Other payable of FY 2018 : X 452 lakhs, FY 2017: % 334 lakhs has been reclassified to Trade payables.

14. Debt Securities ™

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(X lakhs) {X lakhs) (% lakhs)
At amortized cost
Non- convertible debentures (secured)* 74,988 38,346 -
Total 74,988 38,346 -

*Non- Convertible Debentures are secured by first pari passu charge over ail loan receivables and
immovable property.

## The funds raised by the Company during the year by issue of Secured / Unsecured Non-Convertible
Debentures / bonds were utilized for the purpose intended, i.e. towards lending, financing, to refinance
the existing indebtedness of the Company or for long-term working capital, in compliance with applicable

laws.

15. Borrowings

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(X lakhs} (% 1akhs) (% lakhs)

At amortized cost

Term loans from bank (secured}* 193,358 85,372 32,263
Other Loans

Commercial papers (unsecured)# 7,753 10,153 2,375
Total 201,111 95,525 34,638

*Indian rupee loan from banks are secured by first pari passu charge over all loan receivables.

#Commercial paper carries interest in the range of 9.50% to 9.65% p.a. and tenure of 90 to 365 days fully
payable at maturity. The interest rate is on XIRR basis.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
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(b} Net Debt Reconciliation

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 ;| 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(X lakhs) (%X lakhs) {X lakhs)
Borrowings 201,111 95,525 34,638
Debt securities 74,988 38,346 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (9,461) (349) {(1,603)
Net Debt 266,638 133,522 33,035
Changes in financial liabilities arising from financing activities
(% lakhs)
Particulars Borrowings Del:':t.
securities
Balance as at 1 April 2017 34,638 -
Receipts 64,750 37,000
Repayment (3,750) -
Finance costs* 4,633 1,360
Finance costs paid {4,746) {14)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 85,525 38,346
Receipts 154,700 34,300
Repayment (48,500) -
Finance costs* 13,882 4,506
Finance costs paid (14,498) {2,164)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 201,111 74,988
*Finance cost includes interest accrued but not due,
Terms of repayment of non-convertible debentures as on 31 March 2019
Original Due within | Duelto2 | Due2to3 | Morethan
maturit%/ of loan _Rate of 1 year Years Years 3 Years Total
(inno.ofdays) | oSt T xiakhs) | (Xlakhs) | (Xlakhs) | (Xlakhs) | (%lakhs)
Issued at par and redeemable at par
2311005 08% - 09% - 5,000 - - 5,000
09% - 11% - 17,500 - - 17,500
07% - 08% - 13,000 - - 13,000
1096-1460 08% - 09% - - 15,000 - 15,000
09% - 11% - - 7,500 - 7,500
More than 1460 08% -~ 09% - - - 10,800 10,800
09% - 11% - - - 2,500 2,500
- 35,500 22,500 13,300 71,300
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
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Terms of repayment of non-convertible debentures as on 31 March 2018

Original Rate of Duewithin | Dueltoc2 | Due2to3 | Morethan Total
maturity of loan in:e(:e(;t 1 year Years Years 3 Years
{in no. of days) {% lakhs) (% lakhs) (% lakhs) (% lakhs) (% lakhs)
issued at par and redeemable at par
731-1095 08% - 09% - - 5,000 - 5,000
1096-1460 07% - 08% - - 13,000 - 13,000
08% -09% - - - 15,000 15,000
08% -09% - - - 4,000 4,000
Total - - 18,000 19,000 37,000
Terms of repayment of term loans as on 31 March 2019
N Due within 1 Duelto2 Due 2 to 3 Years More than 3 Total
Original year Years Years
maturity Rate of No. No. No. No.
of loan interest of of of of
{in no. of . ZXlakhs | inst | K lakhs | instal | Xlakhs | . Zlakhs | Xlakhs
install install
days) allm Iment
ments ments
ents S
Quarterly repayment schedule
i’gg than | g% - 00% 3| 2500 4| 3,333 4| 3333 14 | 10,834 | 20,000
09% - 11% 14 3,167 16 4,833 16 4,833 36 9,667 22,500
Half yearly repayment schedule
366-730 09% - 11% 1 250 - - - - - - 250
731-1095 09% - 11% 4,833 - - 2 2,500 4 5,000 12,333
1223— 08% - 09% 4 1,666 4 1,667 - - - - 3,333
09% - 11% - - 1 833 2 1,667 4 2,500 5,000
More th
) 4‘;'5 M 08% - 09% 19| 7,000| 20| 8667| 21| 10334 37| 16,708 | 42,709
09%-11% 6 3,000 21 9,667 29 17,042 45| 27,916 57,625
Yearly repayment schedule
731-1095 08% - 09% 1 5,000 1 5,000 - - - - 10,000
More th
) 4%? M 09%-11% 1| 6667 1| 6667 1| 6,666 - -1 20000
Total 57 | 34,083 68 40,667 75 46,375 140 | 72,625 | 1,93,750
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
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Terms of repayment of term loans as on 31 March 2018

. Due within 1 Due 1to2 Years | Due 2to 3 Years More than 3 Total
Original year Years
ity of .
maturity o Rate of No. No No. No.
loan interest of g of of of
{in no. of . instal | ¥Xlakhs | , Tlakhs | ., Xlakhs | Xlakhs
instali | lakhs install install
days) Imen
ments ts ments ments
Quarterly repayment schedule
M
orethan | ;oo _ 9% - - 4 700 4 700 12| 2100| 3,500
1460
Half yearly repayment schedule
731-1095 08% - 09% 10| 4,666 11 5,584 - - - - 10,250
1096-1460 08% - 09% 4| 1,667 4 1,666 4 1,667 - - 5,000
mf than | g9 - 0% 1| 1,000 21 2,000 2| 2,000 5! 5000| 10,000
08% - 09% 7 2,375 13 5,041 14 7,542 201 11,542 26,500
Yearly repayment schedule
731-1095 08% - 09% - - 2 5,000 1 5,000 - - 10,000
ﬂ%;e than e - 09% - - 1| 6666 1| 6667 1| 6667! 20,000
Total 22 | 9,708 37| 26,657 26| 23576 33 | 25,309 85,250
Terms of repayment of term loans as on 1 April 2017
Original Due2to3 More than 3
trig[na P Due within 1 year | Due 1 to 2 Years Years Years Total
ma Iz:rt‘v © Rate of No. No.
{in no. of interest No. of No. of of of
p ') installme install % install % | instail
ays nts lakhs | ments | lakhs | ments | lakhs | ments | Xlakhs | Xiakhs
Half yearly repayment schedule
731-1095 09% - 11% 2 1,250 7 4,333 - - 8 4,417 | 10,000
More than o 0
1460 08% - 09% - - 4 1,625 7 5,958 14 11,917 | 19,500
09% - 11% - - 2 417 2 417 2 416 1,250
Yearly repayment schedule
731-1095 09% - 11% - - 1 500 2 1,000 - - 1,500
Total 2 1,250 14 6,875 11 7,375 24 16,750 | 32,250

Note : The above disclosures are based on face value of non-convertible debentures / principal amounts of term
loans as per terms of issue / contract and outstanding as at respective reporting dates.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

Particulars of Secured Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures:

(% lakhs)
Face . As at As at As at
Particulars Value ;;-u;:‘;t:z ;;i; Regz::p:ifon 31 March 31 March 01 April
2019 2018 2017
9.25% Series-9 10 250 08-Aug-25 2,500 - -
8.75% Series-6 10 680 28-May-23 6,800 - -
8.05% Series-2 10 400 Z24-Mar-23 4,000 4,000 -
9.2% Series-8 10 750 28-Jul-21 7,500 - -
8.05% Series-5 10 500 20-Apr-21 5,000 5,000 -
8.48% Series-7 10 1,000 20-Apr-21 10,000 10,000 -
9.68% Series-10 10 1,250 24-Mar-21 12,500 - -
9.67% Series-11 10 500 22-Mar-21 5,000 - -
7.95% Series-4 10 300 26-Nov-20 3,000 3,000 -
7.95% Series-3 10 1,000 28-Aug-20 10,000 10,000 -
8.25% Series-1 10 500 27-May-20 5,000 5,000 -
Total 71,300 37,000 “
16. Cther Financials Liabilities
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
{X lakhs) {% lakhs) {% lakhs)
Employee benefits and other payables 1,109 553 393
Book overdraft 16,050 28,621 11,624
Payable towards asset assignment / 503 i i
securitization
Others* 1,890 1,330 284
Total 19,252 30,504 12,301

*QOther payable of FY 2018 : £ 452 lakhs, FY 2017: X 334 lakhs has been reclassified to Trade payables.

17. Current tax liabilities

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
{X lakhs) {X lakhs) {X lakhs}
Provision for Income Tax {net of advance tax) 7 65 -
Total 7 65 -
18. Provisions
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(% takhs) {Z lakhs) (X lakhs)
Provision for employee benefits e
- Provision for gratuity 85 50 L2240
- Provision for leave benefits 9 9 ' 17| .
Total 94 59 - 39|




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

19. Other non-financial liahilities

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
{%X lakhs) {% lakhs) (X lakhs)
Statutory dues 182 138 85
Others 641 405 232
Total 823 543 317
20. Share capital
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(% lakhs) (X lakhs) (% lakhs)
Equity shares Capital (Authorized) 150,000 150,000 150,000

each

1,500,000,000 {31 March 2018: 1,500,000,000; 1 April 2017: 1,500,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

24,536 |

19,527

19,527

fully paid

245,356,916 (31 March 2018: 195,273,443; 1 April 2017: 195,273,443) Equity shares of Rs.10 each

(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 01 Aprit 2017
Particulars Amount Amount Amount
Number | g jakhs) | NUMPET | 2 takhs) | NPT | (= Jakhs)
Balance atthe beginning | 1oc 223 143 | 19527 | 195,273,443 | 19,527 | 195,273,443 | 19,527
of the year
Add :Shares issued during 50,083,473 5,009 i ) : )
the year
::ar“‘e attheendofthe |, o 356016 | 24,536 | 195,273,443 | 19,527 | 195,273,443 | 19,527

{b} Terms/right attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of X 10 per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Any Dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Dividend is declared
and paid in indian rupees. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{c) Shares held by holding Company

Qut of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, ultimate holding
Company and their subsidiaries/associates are as below:
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As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

As at 01 April 2017

Amount
(% lakhs)

Particulars
Number

Number

Amount
(X lakhs)

Number

Amount
(X lakhs)

Fullerton India Credit
Company Limited, the
holding company and its
nominees

245,356,916 (31 March
2018:1985,273,443; 1 April
2017: 195,273,443) equity
shares of Rs.10 each fully

245,356,916 24,536

paid)

195,273,443

19,527

195,273,443

19,527

(d} Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company

Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 01 April 2017
, % % %

Ej:ﬂtyasiZares of Rs.10 each Number of Number of Number of

¥ P holding holding holding
Fullerton India Credit
Company Limited, the 245,356,916 |  100% | 195,273,443 |  100% | 195,273,443 |  100%
holding company and its
nominees

(e} Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company
The Company has not issued any bonus shares or shares for consideration other than cash nor has there
been any buyback of shares during five years immediately preceding 31 March 2019.

21. Other Equity

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 | 01 April 2017
(% lakhs) (% lakhs) (% lakhs)

Capital Reserve 10 10 -
Securities premium 26,454 16,463 16,473
Reserve Fund under Section 29C{i) of the NHB

Act, 1987 231 220 i
Items of OCl {10) 9 -
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss {1,516) {1,553) {1,757)
Total 25,169 15,149 14,716

(Refer Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 31°* March 2019 for movement in Other Equity)

Nature and purpose of reserves

{i) General Reserve

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act 1956, the Company had transferred a portion of profit of
the Company before declaring dividend to general reserve. However mandatory transfer to general

reserve is not required under Companies Act, 2013,

Vo
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(ii} Capital Reserve

Capital Reserve is created on account of reversal of debenture issue costs charged o securities premium
under previous GAAP. The same shall be utilized as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

(iii) Securities Premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

{iv) Reserve Fund under Section 29C(i) of the NHB Act, 1987
The Company is required to create a fund by transferring not less than 20% its net profit every year as
disclosed in the statement of profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared. The fund shall
be utilised for the purpose as may be specified by the National Housing Bank from time to time and every

such appropriation shalt be reported to the National Housing Bank within 21 days from the date of such
withdrawal.

{v) Retained Earnings & Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Retained earnings are profit that the Company has earned to date, less any dividend or other
distributions paid to the shareholders, net of utilization as permitted under applicable law.

22. Interest Income

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
{% lakhs) (X lakhs)
On Loans 30,068 12,034
On Bank Deposits 203 343
On Investments 491 578
Total 30,762 12,955
23. Fee and Commission Income
For the year For the year
] ended ended
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
(% lakhs) {X lakhs})
Fees and Commission Income 359 151
Total 359 151

24. Net gain on financial assets at FVTPL

For the year For the year
. ended ended
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
(X lakhs) {X lakhs)
Realized Gain 1023 o235
Unrealized Gain 49 1 - L1
Total 1072 |
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25. Ancillary Income

For the year

For the year

. ended ended
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
(% lakhs) {X lakhs)
Other fee income 545 219
Total 545 215
26. Other Income
For the year For the year
. ended ended
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
{X lakhs) {X lakhs)
Security Deposits 7 -
Miscellaneous income 235 12¢9
Total 242 129
27. Finance Cost
For the year For the year
. ended ended
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
(% lakhs) (X lakhs)
On financial liahilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 13,842 4,510
Debt securities 4,506 1,360
Bank charges and others 40 123
Total 18,388 5,993
28. Impairment on financial instruments
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
(% lakhs) {X lakhs)
Bad debts and Write off (net of recovery) 3,099 42
Provision for loans and advances 1,252 2765
Total 4,351 2,807

*Bad debts and write offs are offset by recovery of 2,455 lakhs {FY 2018: Nil lakhs)
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29. Employee benefits expense

For the year For the year

Particulars ended ended

31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018

{% lakhs) (% lakhs)

Salaries, honus and allowances 5,010 2,761
Share based payment to employees and directors 321 20
Contribution to provident and other funds 184 100
Gratuity expense (refer note 37) 37 14
Staff welfare and training expenses 110 71
Total 5,662 2,966

30. Other Expenses

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
(X lakhs) {X lakhs)
Printing and stationery 63 35
Rent 387 58
Rates and taxes 2 1
Business promotion expenses 154 35
Legal charges 68 5
Professional charges 1,618 1,055
Collection expenses 112 a7
Courter charges 22 2
Repairs and maintenance
Office premises 81 20
Others 3 4
Directors' sitting fees 19 20
Travelling expenses 160 108
Telecommunication expenses 74 10
Payment to auditor (refer details below) 31 16
Electricity charges 31 o
Security charges 62 2
Recruitment expenses 55 48
Training expenses 9 21
Fees and subscription 3 -
Miscellaneous expenses 1,094 738
Write off of fixed assets and intangible assets 1 -
Total 4,049 2,225
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Professional fees payable to auditors

Statutory Audit fee 13 9
Tax Audit fee 2 2
Limited review fee 3 2
In other capacity

- Certification matter & others 12 2
- Reimbursement of expenses 1 1
Total 31 16

31. Tax Expense

{a) Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
(X lakhs) {% lakhs)
Current tax for the year 458 524
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods
Current tax expense (A} 458 524
Deferred taxes for the year
(Increase)/decrease in deferred tax assets (511) (1,409)
increase/{decrease) in deferred tax liabilities 301 118
Net deferred tax Asset (B) {210} {1,291)
Total Income Tax Expense (A+B) 248 {(767)
{b}) Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
(%X lakhs) (% lakhs)
{tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligations (net of tax) {19) 9
Total (19} 9

{c) Tax reconciliation (for profit and loss)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
(% lakhs) (X lakhs)
Net Profit / (Loss) before OCl as per PL 296 {343)
income tax @ Statutory Tax Rate of 29.12% 86 (100)
Tax effects of: e
ltemns which are taxed at different rates 156 {671). - R .
Net expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 9 T )

/-T‘-Neductible expenses debited to OCi

2.:,2-__.‘. )
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Recognition of previously unrecognised temporary differences 3} 3
Income tax expenses reported in PL 248 {767)
Tax Rate Effective® 83.85% 223.55%

*In FY 2018-19 the Govt. enacted or a change in national income tax rate by increasing health and education
cess tax from 3% to 4%, accordingly income tax rate has been increased from 28.32% in FY 2017-18 10 29.12%

in FY 2018-19
Significant components and movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities {X lakhs)
. As at Recognis.ed Recognised | Recognised As at
Particulars 31 March in Profit \ ) . 31 March
2018 and loss in OCI In equity 2019
Deferred tax liabilities on account of:
Difference in book value of PPE 6 2 - - 8
E'forrovaing co.s.t'adjustmentf; related to 40 124 ) i 164
financial liabilities at amortised cost
Fair valuation of loans assigned - 184 - - 184
Provision for security deposits - - - - -
Special Reserve created as per section 25C of
NHB Act, 1987 and claimed as deduction u/s 76 (9) - - 67
36 (1) {viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
Deferred Tax Liability (A) 122 301 - - 423
Deferred tax assets on account of:
imp.-act or.1 application of expected credit loss 1,052 533 ) ) 1.284
on financial assets
Proc.essin.g fee and LOC adjtllstments related 305 174 ) i 479
to Financial assets at amortised cost
Impact of expenditure under Section 43B of 11 125 ) i 136
Income Tax Act, 1961
Fair valuation of SAR liability 6 {6) - - -
Provision for security deposits - i - - 1
Rent equalisation reserve - 6 - - 6
MTM on investments 2 {2) - - -
Preliminary expenses 33 {(19) - - 14
Deferred tax assets (B) 1,409 511 - - 1,920
Net Deferred Tax Assets (B — A) 1,287 210 - - 1,497
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{X lakhs)
As at . . As at
1 April R?cogmstd Re_c ognised Recognised ; 31 March
2017 in Profit in Oct in equity 2018
and loss
Deferred tax liabilities on account of:
Difference in book value of PPE 6 - - 6
Borrowing cost adjustments related to
financial liabilities at amortised cost 36 ) 4 40
Special Reserve created as per section 26C of
NHB Act, 1987 and claimed as deduction u/s 76 - - 76
36 {1} (viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
Deferred Tax Liability {A) 118 - 4 122
Deferred tax assets on account of:
Empgct or-1 application of expected credit loss 1,052 ) ] 1,052
on financial assets
Processing fees and LOC adjustments related
to financial assets at amortised cost 305 i ) 305
impact of expenditure under Section 43B of 11 i ) 11
Income Tax Act, 1961
Fair valuation of SAR liability 6 - - 6
Provision for security deposits - - - -
MTM on investments 2 - - 2
Preliminary expenses 33 - - 33
Deferred Tax Assets {B) 1,409 - - 1,409
Net Deferred Tax Assets (B — A) 1,291 - {4) 1,287
32. Amount recognized in Cther Comprehensive Income
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Particulars (% lakhs) (% lakhs)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss
Actuarial gain / {loss) on defined benefit obligations (net of tax) {19) 9
Total (19) 9
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
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33. Earnings Per Share

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2019

For the year
ended
31 March 2018

Net Profit after tax attributable to equity holders (% lakhs) 48 424
= - , -

swhzli ed average number of equity shares for Basic earnings per 220,383,787 195,273 443
Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted earnings per 220,383,787 195,273,443
share

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share X 0.02 0.22
Diluted earnings per share X 0.02 0.22

Nominal value of shares ¥ 10 each (Previous year: ¥ 10 each)
The Company has not issued any potential equity shares. Accordingly diluted EPS is equal to basic EPS

34. First time adoption of Ind AS

These are the Company’s first separate financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the
period upto and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has prepared its financial
statements in accordance with Previous GAAP.

The accounting policies set out in Note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2019, the comparative information presented in these financial statements as at
and for the year ended 31 March 2018 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1
April 2017 {the date of transition). This note explains the principle adjustments made by the Company in
restating its Previous GAAP financial statements, including the Balance Sheet as at 1 April 2017 and the
financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Optional exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions

In preparing these ind AS financial statements, the Company has availed certain exemptions and
exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101, as explained below. The resulting difference between the
carrying values of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements as at the transition date under Ind
AS and Previous GAAP is recognsied directly in equity (retained earnings or another appropriate category
of equity}.

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial
position, financial performance and cash flows is as follows:

A. Exceptions and exemptions availed
{1) Ind AS Mandatory Exceptions

Estimates

On assessment of the estimates made under the Previous GAAP financial statements, the Company
has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the estimates under Ind AS. However estimates
that were required under ind AS but not required under Previous GAAP are made by the Company
for the relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date. S fl/ e
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I

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The Company has determined the classification and measurement of financial assets based on facts
and circumstances that existed on the date of transition.

De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

The Company has applied the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of
transition to Ind AS.

Stock appreciation rights

The Company has elected to apply Ind AS 102 Share-based payment to SAR that were unvested and
unexercised on the date of transition to Ind AS.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the impairment related requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively from
the transition date.

Ind AS Optional Exemption Availed

Deemed cost - Property Plant and Equipment and Other intangible Assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its Property, Plant and
Equipment and Intangible Assets as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition
to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of
transition.

B. Reconciliations between Previous GAAP and Ind AS

For the purposes of reporting as set out in Note 1B, the Company has transitioned its basis of accounting
from Previous GAAP to ind AS. The accounting policies set out in note 1C have been applied in preparing
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019, the comparative information presented in
these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 and in the preparation of an opening ind
AS balance sheet at April 01, 2017 (the 'transition date'}.

In preparing the opening Ind AS balance sheet, amounts reported in financial statements prepared in
accordance with Previous GAAP have been adjusted. An explanatian of how the transition from Previous
GAAP to Ind AS has affected the financial performance, financial position and cash flows is set out in the
following tables and the notes that accompany the tables.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 Match 2019

B.1 Reconciliation between Previous GAAP and Ind AS

i) Effect of Ind AS adoption on the balance sheet as at 1 April 2017

As at 1 April 2017 (% lakhs)

As at 31 March 2018 (X lakhs)

Particulars Previous | Adjustm [ Amount Previous | Adjustm | Amount under
GAAP* ents IND AS GAAP* ents IND AS
ASSETS
Financiaf assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,603 - 1,603 349 - 349
Bank balances other than cash
and cash equivalents 4,545 - 4,545 5,356 - 5,356
investments 28,657 (9) 28,648 4,750 {8) 4,742
Trade receivables - - - 26 - 26
Other financial assets 87 - 87 394 - 394
Loans and advances 46,947 (74) 46,873 1,88,571 {1,083) 1,87,488
Total Financial assets 81,839 (83) 81,756 1,99,446 (1,091) 1,98,355
Non- Financial assets
Current tax assets {net) 9 - 9 32 - 32
Deferred tax asset (net) - - - 981 306 1,287
Property, plant and equipment 53 - 53 139 - 139
Intangibles assets 13 - 13 10 - 10
Other Non-Financial assets 41 - 41 347 - 347
Total Non-Financial assets 116 - 116 1,509 306 1,815
Total Assets 81,955 (83) 81,872 | 2,00,955 (785) 2,00,170
LIABWITIES AND EQUITY
Liahilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 334 - 334 452 - 452
Debt Securities - - - 38,404 (58) 38,346
Borrowings 34,638 - 34,638 95,525 - 95,525
Cther financial liabilities 12,295 6 12,301 30,483 21 30,504
Total Financial Liability 47,267 6 47,273 1,64,864 (37) 1,64,827
Non-Financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) - - - 65 - 65
Provisions 39 - 39 59 - 59
Other Non-Financial liahilities 317 - 317 543 - 543
Total Non-Financial Liability 356 - 356 667 - 667
Equity
Equity share capital 19,527 - 19,527 19,527 - 19,527
Other equity ' 14,805 (89) 14,716 15,897 (748) +-15,149
34,332 (89) 34,243 35,424 (748)| 34,676
Total Liabilities and Equity 81,955 (83) 81,872 | 2,00,955 (785} - 2,00,i70 |-

uepose of this note.

* The Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation rejqujr'emﬁms/for' the
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ii) Effect of ind AS adoption on statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2018

(% lakhs)

. Amount

Particulars Péi‘g‘;is Adjustments | under
IND AS

Revenue from operations
Interest income 12,833 122 12,955
Fees and commission income 151 - 151
Net gain on fair value changes 235 1 236
Ancillary income 219 - 219
Total revenue from operations 13,438 123 | 13,561
Other income 129 - 129
Total Income 13,567 123 | 13,680
Expenses
Finance costs 6,037 {44) 5,993
Impairment on financial instruments 1,675 1,132 2,807
Employee benefits expense 2,943 23 2,966
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 42 - 42
Other expenses 2,225 - 2,225
Total expenses 12,922 1,111 | 14,033
Profit before tax 645 (988) (343)
Tax expense
{i) Current tax 524 - 524
{ii) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - - -
{iii) Deferred tax expense / (credit) {981) (310) | (1,291)
Net profit after tax ) 1,102 (678) 424
Other comprehensive income / {loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss, net of
tax
Re-measurement of defined benefit plan (net of tax) - 9 9
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of i 9 9
tax
Total comprehensive income 1,102 {669) 433




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of sigaificant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

iii) Reconciliation of equity from previous GAAP to IND AS

{Z lakhs)
Equity as at
Particulars Note 31 March | 01 April
2018 2017
Equity as per previous GAAP 35,424 34,332
GAAP adjustments:
Impact on recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities at amortised cost by application of Effective
interest rate:
- Financial assets (a) 122 -
- Financial Habilities {b) 58 -
LTSFZ(: on application of expected credit loss on financial () (1,206) (74)
Fair valuation of investments {d) {(8) (9)
Fair valuation of SAR liability (e) (21) (6)
Deferred tax adjustments on above (g) 307 -
Total - GAAP adjustments (748) (89)
Equity as per IND AS 34,676 34,243
Reconciliation of total comprehensive income from previous GAAP to iND AS {% lakhs)

. Equity as at
Particulars Note 31 ?Vlar:h 2018
Net profit for the period as per previous GAAP 1,102
GAAP adjustments:

Impact on recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities at amortised cost by application of Effective
interest rate:

- Financial assets (a) 122

- Financial liabilities (b 45
Impact on application of expected credit loss on financial {1,132)
assets (c)

Fair valuation of investments {d) 1
Fair valuation of SAR liability (e) (15)
Reclassification of actuarial gain / loss on defined benefit (9)
ohligation to other comprehensive income (f)

impact of deferred taxes on the above adjustments {g) 310
Net profit after tax 424
Reclassification of actuarial gain / loss on defined benefit

obligation to other comprehensive income (net of tax) 9
Total comprehensive income as per IND AS e 433 ;

iv) Impact on Cash flow statements : i
There is no significant impact on cash flow from operating, investing and flnancmg act:wtles for the

year ended 31 March 2018 on transition to Ind AS. - d\/




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
atand for the year ended 31 March 2019

B.2 Notes to reconciliations

{(a) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

(b}

(c)

(d)

Security Deposits
Under the Previous GAAP, interest free lease security deposits given {that are refundable in cash on
expiry/termination of the lease term) were recorded at their transaction value.

Under Ind AS, all financial assets are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition.
Accordingly, the Company has fair valued lease security deposits under IND AS. Difference between the
fair value and transaction value of the security deposits has been recognized as prepaid expenses.
Subsequently, the deposit will be measured at amortised cost resulting into recognition of finance
income in the statement of profit and loss.

Portfolio Loans

Under the Previous GAAP, loans are accounted at the gross transaction price where processing fees is
recognized as income and loan origination costs are recognized as expenses, over the period of the
foan in proportion to the interest income for the entire period.

Under IND AS, transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amount of financial assets and
recognized as interest income using the effective interest method. Since these portfolio loans are
linked on Company’s prime lending rate, therefore carrying value of portfolio [oans remains same.

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Under the Previous GAAP, transaction costs incurred on borrowings were charged to securities
premium upfront.

Under Ind AS, transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amount of financial liabilities and
recognized as interest expenses using the effective interest method. IND AS impact of the amount
already charged in securities premium till transition date is reversed under capital reserve.

Impact on implementation of expected credit foss on financial assets.

Under the Previous GAAP, provision for doubtful debts are made based on the RBI prudential norms for
incurred losses.

Under Ind AS, an impairment loss shall be recognized as per the expected credit losses model on all
financial assets (other than those measured at fair valuel.

Fair Valuation of Investments

Under the Previous GAAP, long term investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution was
recognized for a decline, if any, which was other than temporary in the value of Long Term
investments. Short ferm investments are carried at net realizable value or cost whichever is lower.

Under Ind AS, the Company has measured its investments in government securities, treasury bills,
mutual funds, commercial papers, corporate bonds, certificate of deposit sat FVTPL as they do not
- the SPPI criteria (i.e. solely payments of principal and interest}. '
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(e)

(f

(g)

(h)

Fair Valuation of Stock Appreciation Rights

Under the Previous GAAP, the cost of cash-settled employee share-based plan were recognized using
the net book value as at the grant date.

Under Ind AS, the Company has measured the cost of cash-settled employee share-based plan at fair
value as at reporting date. The resulting employee compensation cost has been recognized in retained
earnings as at the date of transition April 01, 2017 and subseguently in the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2018,

Impact of recognizing actuarial gains / (losses) on defined benefit obligations in other
comprehensive income

Under the Previous GAAP, actuarial gains / losses on defined benefit obligations were recognized in
statement of profit and loss as part of employee benefit expenses.

Under Ind AS, re-measurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive
income instead of the statement of profit and loss.

Impact on account of deferred taxes

Under the Previous GAAP, deferred tax was accounted as per the income approach which required
creation of deferred tax asset/ liability on timing differences between taxable income and accounting
income.

Under Ind AS, deferred tax is accounted as per the balance sheet approach which requires creation of
deferred tax asset/ liability on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset/ liability
in the Balance Sheet and its corresponding tax base. The adjustments in equity and net profit, as
discussed above, resulted in additional temporary differences on which deferred taxes are caiculated.
In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the
accounting policies, the Company has accounted deferred tax on them.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings as.on 1st April 2017 has been adjusted conseguent to the above IND AS transition
adjustment

35. Related Party Disclosures

Related party disclosures as required under Indian Accounting standard 24, “Related party disclosure” are
given below for the related parties of the Company with whom there have been transaction during the year.
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35.1. List of related parties

Nature of Relationship Name of Related Party

Ultimate Holding Company FICCL)

Holding Company

Angelica Investments Pte Ltd, Singapore (‘Angelica’){Holding Company of

Fullerton Financials Holdings Pte Ltd (Holding Company of Angelica)
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited (Holding Company of ‘FFH’)
Fullerton India Credit Company Limited (‘FICCL’, Hoiding Company)

Key Management

Dr Milan Robert Shuster, Independent Director
Mpr. Kenneth Ho Tat Meng, Non Independent Director
Ms. Renu Challu, independent Director

Personnel Mr. Rakesh Makkar, Chief Executive Officer and Whole time Director
since 16 March, 2018
Mr. Ravindra Rao, Chief Executive Officer till 15 March 2018
35.2, Transactions during the year with related parties :
For the year For the year

Nat T i ended ended

ature ot fransactions 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018

(% lakhs) (X Iakhs)

Expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of others

Fullerton India Credit Company Limited - 34
income earned by the Company on behalf of others 4 -
Fullerton India Credit Company Limited
Issue of Share capital {(including securities premium)

Fullerton India Credit Company Limited 15,000 -
Expense as per Resource sharing agreement

Fullerton India Credit Company Limited 1,033 795
Fee for committed credit line

Fullerton india Credit Company Limited 15 34

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2019 {31 March 2018

Remunheration paid to Company's KMPs (% lakhs) (X lakhs)
Salary, bonus and alfowances (including short terms benefits) 259 173
Post -employment benefits 10 4
Director's sitting fees 19 19

Note : The managerial remuneration paid by the Company to its Directors during the__'curre.nt year is iy

accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V.to
the Act vide special resolution passed at its extra ordinary general meeting held on 4 January 2019. : o
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35.3. Amount due to / from related parties:
Balance outstanding as at the year end As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2018
(X lakhs) (% lakhs)

Issue of Equity Share

FuHerton India Credit Company Limited 51,000 36,000
Other Payables (Net)

Fullerton India Credit Company Limited 106 194

36. Capital Management

Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of the Company’s capital
management. The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue
as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of its strategic and day-to-day
needs with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence. The
funding requirements are met through equity, borrowings and operating cash flows generated. The
management monitors the return on capital and the board of directors monitors the level of dividends to

shareholders of the Company. The Company may take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if
necessary adjust, its capital structure.

The company maintains its capital base to cover the risks inherent in the business and in meeting the
capital adequacy reguirements of the National Housing Bank {NHB). The adequacy of the company's
capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued NHB, Company has complied in
full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reporfed period. For details refer
“Additional disclosure as per NHB”

37. Retirement Benefit Plans
Defined Contribution Plan
The total expense charged to income statement of X 184 lakhs (2018: 100 lakhs) represents contributions

payable to these plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plan.

Defined Benefit Obligation

31 March 31 March
Particulars 2019 {Amount | 2018 {Amount
g) )

Actuarial assumptions
Mortality table

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality

C;é
<3
g
<

£~

&

(2006-08) (2006-08)
Discount rate and expected rate of return on assets 6.76% p.a. 6.93% p.a.
Rate of increase in compensation 10.00% p.a. 1_Q.00%p;a. - o
Employee turnover o
Category 1~ For basic upto £ 1.2 lakhs S A
Up to 4 years 46.70% 3 ':_'43.5@(:/. S0 B
nan,, 5 years and above 2.00% C200%Y |
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Category 2 — For basic more than X 1.2 lakhs
Up to 4 years 50,90% 61.30%
5 years and above 5 00% 5 00%
Assets information:
Insured Managed funds - -
Changes In the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 49,72,642 22,53,211
Interest expense 3,44,604 1,59,753
Current service cost 12,11,415 12,08,433
Past service cost - -
Liability Transferred In 21,75,335 23,41,832
Liability Transferred Qut/ - {1,38,141)
Benefit Paid From the Fund - -
Actuarial (G.ains)/Losse.s on Obligations - Due to Change in (4,20,319) (19,99,531)
Demographic Assumptions
pl;c;’clju;z::o(ﬁsalns)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial 270,266 93,653
Ac?tua rial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 20,86,746 10,53,432
adjustments
Present Value of obligation at the end of
1,06,40,689 49,72,642
the year
Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets
Assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year {1,06,40,689) (49,72,642)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period - -
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit}) {1,06,40,689) (49,72,642)
Net (Liahility)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (1,06,40,689) {49,72,642)
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2019 2018
Particulars {Amount ) {Amount X}
Current Service Cost 12,11,415 12,08,433
Past service cost -
Net interest {income)/ expense 3,44,604 1,59,753
Net gratuity expense recognized 15,56,019 12,68,186
Included in note 32 ‘Employee benefits expense’
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Other comprehensive income (OCl)
Actuarial gain/ loss on post-employment benefit
obligation 19,36,693 (8,52,448}
Total re-measurement cost / (credit) for the year recognized in OC 19,36,693 (8,52,446) | <
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Reconciliation of Net asset / (liability) recognized:
31 March 31 March
Particulars 2019 2018
(Amount %) (Amount X)
Opening Net Liability 49,72,642 22,53,211
Expenses recognized at the end of period 15,56,019 13,68,186
Amount recognized in other comprehensive income 19,36,693 {8,52,446)
Net Liability/{Asset) Transfer In 21,75,335 23,41,832
Net {Liability)/Asset Transfer Qut - (1,38,141)
{Employer's Contribution) - -
Net Liability/{Asset) Recognized in the Balance
Sheet 1,06,40,689 49,72,642
Sensitivity Analysis:

. As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Particulars
Decrease Increase Decrease increase

Discount Rate (1% movement) 17,88,705 | (14,68,655) 6,60,278 (5,38,859)
Future Salary Growth (1% movement) (14,41,240) 17,13,568 | (5,29,592) 6,33,577
Rate of Employee Turnover (1% movement) 5,69,485 {4,93,379) 2,37,966 (2,08,243)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on reascnably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as
some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected henefit obligation
has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the

same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the Balance Sheet.

Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation

Year 31 March 2019 {Amount )
1 1,42,500
2 1,49,299
3 1,72,467
4 1,93,767
5 2,15,908
Sum of Years 6 to 10 43,58,391
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Risks associated with Defined Benefit Plan:
{i} Interest Rate Risk

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the government security rate will increase the present value of the
liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the fair value of the assets
depending on the duration of asset.

(i) Salary Risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of

members. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment

market.
{ifi) Investment and concentration risk

The Company has not invested its funds in any fund, accordingly it is not exposed to any investment and
concentration risks.

(v) Mortality Risk

Since the benefits under the plan are not payable for life time and are payable till retirement age only, the
plan does not have any longevity risk.

During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.
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Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as

at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

The movement of the stock appreciation rights during the year is as under:

Particulars (No. of Options) As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2018
Options Outstanding at beginning of Year 4,298,625 1,756,200
Options granted during Year 1,260,000 3,462,500
Options of employee transferred during the year - {2,326,125)
Options forfeited on resignation of employees - {2,400,100)
Options lapsed during the year (187,500) (632,500)
Options exercised during the year - {253,600)
Options outstanding — Unvested 5,074,125 4,298,625
Options outstanding —Vested and Exercisable 297,000 -
Expense recognised (X in Lakhs) 321 20

395. Segment Information

Business Segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker {CODM). The CODM regularly monitors and reviews the operating result of the
whole Company as one segment of "Financing". Thus, as defined in IND AS 108 “Operating Segments”, the
Company'’s entire bhusiness falls under this one operational segment.

Entity wide disclosures

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of
the Company’s total revenue in year ended 31 March 2019 or 31 March 2018. The Company operates in
single geography i.e. India and therefore geographical information is not required to be disclosed separately.

40, Contingent Liability and commitments

a) Contingent liabilities:
{i} The Company has contingent liability pending for litigation of  0.20 Lakhs.
b} Capital and other commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for as at
31 March 2019 is X 76 Lakhs (31 March 2018: % 44 takhs; 1 April 2017 £ 2 Lakhs).

Loans sanctioned not yet disbursed as at 31 March 2019 were % 30,858 Lakhs (31 March 2018: % 8,307;
1 April 2017: X 1,807 Lakhs).

The Company’s pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company by the customers and
proceedings pending with other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and
proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the contingent
liabilities where applicable, in the financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of
these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial statements.

There has been a Supreme Court {SC} judgement dated 28th February, 2019, relating to components of
salary structure that need to be taken into account while computing the contribution to provident-fund
under the EPF Act. There are interpretative aspects related to the Judgement including the effectwe date-_
of application. The Company will continue to assess any further developments in thlS matter for the:';:

lmpllcatlons on financial statements, if any, ﬂ\/ S




Fulletton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as

at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

41, Leases

a) Where the Company is the lessee:

Premises are obtained on operating lease. The lease term ranges from 11 months to 134 months and are
renewable/cancellable at the option of the Company. Certain lease agreements contain clause for
escalation of lease payments. There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. There are no
subleases. Lease payments during the year are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of future rentals payable on operating

teases.

31 March 2019 |31 March 2018
Particulars (X lakhs) (X lakhs)
Operating lease payments recognized during the year 400 -
Minimum lease obligations
Not later than one year 336 -
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,340 -
Later than five years 917 -

42. Micro and Small Enterprises

The Company identifies suppliers registered under the Micro, Smalf and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006, (MSMED) by obtaining confirmations from all suppliers. Based on the information received by the
Company, some of the suppliers have confirmed to be registered under MSMED Act, 2006. Accordingly the
disclosure relating to amount unpaid as at the year ended together with interest paid/payable is disciosed

helow:
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 01 April
2019 2018 2017
(% lakhs) (% lakhs) (% lakhs)

The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to
be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier
as at the end of each accounting year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of
section 16 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of
the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year
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Summarty of significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

The amount of interest due and payable for the period
of delay in making payment (which have heen paid but - - -
beyond the appeinted day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under Micro
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid
at the end of each accounting year; - - -

The amount of further interest remaining due and
payable even in the succeeding years, until such date - - -
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to
the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
Micro small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006,

43,

44,

45,

CSR Expenses

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: Nil (31 March 2018 : Nil)
The average of profits for last three years is a loss; hence no amount was required to be spent on CSR
activities.

Events after reporting date

There have been no events after the reporting date that requires adjustment / disclosure in these
financial statements.

Support Service Cost

During the year, the Company carried out its operations out of premises leased by Fullerton India Credit
Company Limited, the Holding Company to carry out its operations. The Company has entered into
resource sharing agreement with the holding company, as per which the Company has agreed to share
premises and other resources and thereby to facilitate achieve economies of scale and avoid duplication.
The reimbursement of cost is calculated on the basis of number of employees, area occupied, time spent
by employees for other company, actual identification, etc.

During the year the Company has paid X 1,033 lakhs (Previous year X 795 lakhs) on account of above
mentioned arrangement.

46. IRDA
Disclosure as per Schedule VI B for insurance commission income earned during the year ended:
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
{% lakhs) (X lakhs)
ICIC! Lombard General Insurance Company Ltd 307 --'_"151_ T




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

47. There was no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at
31 March, 2019 {31 March 2018: Nil).

48. Financial Risk Management

Risk management framework

The Company's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize
potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Company places emphasis on risk management
practices to ensure an appropriate balance between risks and returns. The Board of Directors of the Company
(BOD) along with the management are primarily responsibie for Financial Risk Management of the Company.
The BOD’s oversight of risk includes review and approval of key risk strategies and policies. These are
monitored and governed through the Risk Oversight Committee (ROC). Audit Committee {AC) ensures that an
independent assurance is provided to the BOD.

The ROC controls and manages an the inherent risks related to the Company’s activities by the following risk
categories:

Risk Exposure arising from Management

Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, bank | ROC is actively involved in the following:
balance other than cash and cash | e Oversight over the implementation of
equivalents, trade &  other | Core Credit Policies and Remedial Management
receivables, financial assets | Policies of the Company;

measured at amortised cost
. Review of the overall portfolio credit

performance of the Company and establishing
concentration fimits by product programs,
collateral types and tenors and customer
prefiles;

. Determination of portfolio credit
quality by reviewing observed default rates,
provisions held, write-offs and status of
recoveries from defaulting borrowers; and

. Review of product programs and
recommending improvements/ amendments
thereto.

Liquidity Risk Financial liahilities BOD is responsible for setting the strategic

direction for the Company. This includes,
establishing the liquidity risk appetite and the
liquidity required to fulfil its sirategic initiatives,
setting boundaries/limits within such levels of
tolerance and approving the policies that
govern risk management under business as
usual and stressed conditions.

Liguidity risk is managed by the Asset Liability | .
Committee (ALCO), based on the Company’s
Liquidity Policy and procedures which -are’|.
based on guidelines provided by ROC. ALCO

derives its authority from the ROC and is |
responsible for ensuring adherence to  the
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
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liguidity and asset — liability management limits
set by the BOD and to oversee implementation
of the strategic direction articulated by the
BOD. ALCO not only ensures that the Company
has adequate liquidity on an on-going basis but
also examines how liquidity requirements are
likely to evolve under different assumptions.

Market Risk Recognized financial assets and | ROC is involved in the formulation of policies
- Foreign Exch. | financial liabilities not denominated | for monitoring market risk. The risk is managed
in functional currency through close identification, supervision and

monitoring of risks arising from movements in
market rates such as interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, traded prices and credit
spreads, which may result in a loss of earnings

and capital.
- Interest Rate | Investments in units of mutual | ROC is invaolved in the formulation of policies for
Risk {IRS) fund, bonds, government | monitoring market risk. The risk is managed
- Price Risk securities, certificate of deposits | through close identification, supervision and
and commercial papers monitoring of risks arising from movements in

market rates such as interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, traded prices and credit
spreads, which may result in a loss of earnings
and capital.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financials loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to the financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligation, and arises principally from the cash and cash equivalents, bank balance
gther than cash and cash equivalents, trade & other receivables and financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

The Risk Management Policy addresses the recognition, measurement, monitoring and reporting of the Credit
risk. The ROC reviews and approves Loan Product programs on an on-going basis. Key aspect of the product
programs outline the framework of any credit financial product being offered by the Company. Within this
established framework, credit policies are established to manage the sourcing of proposals, channels of
business acquisition, process of underwriting, information systems involved, credit appraisal, verification,
documentation, disbursement and collection / recovery procedures.

Product level credit risk policies are implemented to align all new customer acquisitions across locations and regions,
individual profiles, income levels, leverage positions, collateral types and value, source of income and continuity of
employment/business.

The Company has additionally taken the following measures:-

¢ Credit risk team is appointed to enhance focus on monitoring of borrowers and to facilitate proactive action
wherever required.

¢ Enhanced monitoring of portfolio through periodic reviews.

¢ Periodic trainings to its credit officers
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
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Credit approval

The Board of Directors has delegated credit approval authority to the Company’s Credit Committee, Chief Risk
Officer / National Credit Manager, Regional Credit Manager and Credit Manager under the Company’s Credit
Policy. The branch credit team/operations team monitors compliance with the terms and conditions of credit
facilities prior to disbursement. It also reviews the completeness of documentation and creation of security by

the borrower.

The central operations team verifies adherence to the terms of the credit approval prior to the disbursement of
credit facilities,

Credit underwriting
The Company’'s credit officers evaluate credit proposals on the basis of credit underwriting policies and

procedures approved by the management. The criteria typically include factors such as the customer eligibility,
income and debt obligation assessment, nature of product, customer scorecards wherever applicable, historical
experience, type of collateral provided and demographic parameters. Any deviations need to be approved at
the designated levels,

External agencies such as field investigation agencies facilitate a due diligence process including visits to offices
and residences, risk containment agencies for document frauds, legal & valuer agencies for property
evaijuation.

Analysis of risk concentration

Since the Company provides only retail housing loans, there is not significant concentration risk at the borrower
/ counterparty level. The maximum loan outstanding to any individual borrower or counterparty as of 31 March
2019 was 1,500 lakhs, before taking into account collateral or other credit enhancements or undisbursed
commitments.

Stress testing of portfolio

The Company evaluates potentially adverse scenarios that may impact the business or portfolio performance.
Annual stress test exercise covering the entire portfolio is performed to assess vulnerability of the business
extreme scenarios to possible extreme scenarios and effectiveness of management actions. The assessed
impact is incorporated into risk appetite of the Company to ensure regulatory compliance.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents maximum amount of credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is as per the table below, it being total of carrying amount of cash and cash equivalent,
bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and financial assets measured
at amortised cost.

Particulars Asat As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
(X lakhs) (X lakhs) {X takhs)
Maximum exposure to credit risk 311,781 193,613 53,108

W |
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Analysis of inputs to the ECL model under multiple economic scenarios

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls {i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows which the Company expects to receive) discounted at an
approximation to the EIR,

Cash shortfalls are identified as follows.

s For 12-month ECLs: Cash shortfalls resulting fram default events that are possible in the next 12 months.

» For lifetime ECLs: Cash shortfalls resulting from default events that are possible over the expected life of
the financial instrument.

For undrawn loan commitments, a cash shortfali is the difference between:

e the contractual cash flows that are due to the Company if the holder of the loan commitment draws
down the loan; and

o the cash flows that the Company expects to receive if the loan is drawn down.

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for cash and cash equivalents, bank balance,
investment, trade and other receivables, lcans and advances together with loan commitments and other financial
assets at amortised cost, collectively named as ‘financial assets’.

The Company performs a collective assessment on a homogeneous pool of outstanding joans grouped on the
basis of shared risk characteristic based on the type of products sliced down to geocgraphy as part of the
impairment analysis.

For estimation of ECL, the entire portfolio is broadly partitioned into products like Loan against property and
Housing Loans. Hese portfolio is used to arrive Exposure at Default, Probability of default and Loss given defauit.

The Company follows the expected credit loss {ECL) methodology based on historically availabie information and
projection of macroeconomic indicators in order to determine the impairment allowance required against
different categories / pool of loan accounts.

All defining parameters (PD, LGD, EL Adjustment factor} are estimated on a half yearly frequency. However,
required changes may be done more frequently in case of change in market conditiens, portfolio changes and
other scenarios.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected
credit loss or LTECL), unless there has heen no significant increase in credit risk since its initial recognition, in
which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECL).

The 12mECL is part of LTECL that represent the ECLs from default events on a financial asset that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date.
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Definition of Default

As per the Company’s policy, all assets are classified into stage 1, stage 2 and stage 3. Assets up to 23 DPD {days
past due) are classified as stage 1 assets. Assets with DPD of 30 days up to 89 days are classified as stage 2 assets
and assets with DPD greater than 90 days are classified as stage 3 assets. The Company considers a financial
instrument as defaulted and therefore Stage 3 {credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases when the
borrower facility becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

The Company continuously monitors all financial assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an
instrument or a portfolio of instruments is subject to 12ZmECL or LTECL, the Company assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company considers an exposure to have
significantly increased in credit risk since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 29 days
past due. The Company also applies a qualitative method for triggering a significant increase in credit risk for an
asset. This will be the case for exposure that meets certain heighted risk criteria, such as political situations and
exceptions to normal economic scenarios. Such factors are based on its expert judgement and relevant historical

experiences.

The Probability of Defauit (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default
may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognized
and is still in the portfolio.

The Company collects performance and default information about its credit risk exposures analysed by type of
funding and vintage of loans. The Company employs statistical models of flow analysis to analyse the data
collected and generate estimates of the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to
change as a result of the passage of time. In absence of adequate historical data, the Company uses industry
proxy data of peer companies as sourced from external agencies or similar products offered by companies within
the group.

The Exposure at Default [EAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest,
whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities and accrued interest
whether due or not.

The Loss Given Default {LGD) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time.
it is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due {net of recovery cost) and those that the
lender would expect to receive. They are calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the effective interest
rate as the discounting factor. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. In absence of adequate
historical data, the Company uses industry proxy data of peer companies as sourced from external agencies or
similar products offered by companies within the group.

The Company collects list of all the defaulters and tracked from the first time they become non-performing asset
{“Stage 3”). The Company calculates the LGD based on the present value of month on month recovery post
default for Stage 1 and 2 and takes into account of the Stage 3 recovery and present value of the actual Stage 3.

The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of the market at the
date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overtays are occasmnally made as
temporary adjustments when such differences are significantly material. R
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Reconciliation of ECL balances is given below :

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Particulars {% lakhs) < Iakhs)
12 Life time 12 Life time
Month ECL Total Month ECL Total

ECL ECL
ECL allowance - opening balance 1,635 1,691 3,326 561 - 561
New assets originated or 448 2,884 3332 1225 1658 2,883
purchased
Assets derecognised or repaid *
(excluding write offs) (89) (1,381) (1,470) {115) (3}  (118)
Transfers to Stage 1 212 (212) - 24 (24) -
Transfers to Stage 2 {36) 36 - {17 17 -
Transfers to Stage 3 {41) 41 - {43) 43 -
Amounts written off {91) {519) (610) - - -
ECL allowance - closing balance 2,038 2,540 4,578 1,635 1,691 3,326

*ECL derecognized includes ECL released on account of assignment and NPA pool sale.
Credit Quality

The Company has classified portfolio loans as financial assets at amortized cost and has assessed it at the
collective pool level. The vintage analysis methodology has been used to create the PD term structure which
incorporates both 12 month {Stage 1 Loans) and lifetime PD {Stage 2 and stage 3 Loans). The vintage analysis
captures a vintage default experience across a particular portfolio by tracking the periodic slippages. The vintage
slippage experience/default rate is then used to build the PD term structure.

The vintage analysis methodology has been used to create the LGD vintage. The LGD vintage takes into account
the recovery experience across accounts of a particular portfolio post default. The recoveries are tracked and
discounted to the date of default using the effective interest rate.

Accordingly, the Company analysis exposure to credit risk on the basis of vintage experience across its products.
The Company categorizes its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 based on vintage experience.

Reconciliation of stage movement of portfolio loan is given below :

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Particular {X lakhs) (% lakhs)
Stagel Stage? Stage3 Total Stage 1 Stage2  Stage3 Total
ECL allowance - opening 1,84021 3,445 2,750 1,90,216 46,885 469 - 47,354
balance
New assets originated or 1,37,495 268 745 1,38508 | 148794 1,599 593 1,50,986
purchased
Assets derecognised or
14 - 8,116
repaid {excluding write offs) (25345)  (1,275)  {1,179) (27,799) (8,102) (14) ( )
Transfers to Stage 1 1,161 (945) {216} - 116 {116} - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (3,940) 3,949 (9) - {(1,813) 1,813 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (4,422) (393) 4,815 - {1,850) (397’) 12,157 -
Amounts written off (240) (240)  (1,006)  (1,486) (8) e s 1)
ECL allowance - closing 2,885,730 4,810 5900 2,99,440 184,021 3,445 d\ Y750° 1,90,216
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Trade receivables

Exposures to customers' outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to
determine incurred and expected credit losses. Historical trends of collection from counterparties on timely basis
reflect low level of credit risk. Company creates ECL on trade receivable balances in line with BOD approved
provisioning policy.

Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balance and other financial assets

The Company has a low credit risk in respect of its exposure with financial institutions and other financial assets.
Funds are invested after taking into account parameters like safety, liquidity and post tax returns etc. The
Company avoids concentration of credit risk by spreading them over several counterparties with good credit
rating profile and sound financial position. The Company’s exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are
monitored on an ongaing basis.

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances with banks and financial institutions. The
credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis
and is considered to be high.

While exposure with respect to security deposit and advance given for business purpose is spread across and
carry low credit exposure as the Company has possession of rental premises and other with whom the Company
has worked with for a number of years.

Write off policy

The Company has laid down explicit policies on loan write-offs to deal with assets which are impaired due to
customer’s inability to repay the loan beyond a timeline wherein loan against property and home loans are
written-off at 720 Days Past Due.

Collateral management and associated risks

The Company holds collateral like residential, commercial land & building against secured portfolio loans such as
housing loans, loan against property and developer funding.

The Company has a collateral management system to address the risks associated in the mortgage business.
Onsite inspections by independent experts are carried out to satisfy that the value of the collateral is sufficient to
cover the associated credit risk and that the claim on property is legally enforceable. Credit pelicy guidelines
clearly specify Loan to value {LTV} ratios and ensures a maximum permissible limit on exposure in any collateral
backed funding. This takes care of any revaluation or depreciation in value of asset due to unforeseen
circumstances.

The Collection team foliows up with the customers through field visits as well as through telecommunication for
payment of over dues. Collection team is also responsible for initiating legal action including repossession and
selling of collaterals. In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties in its
retail portfolio. For other collaterals the Company liquidates the assets and recovers the amount due against the
loan. Negotiations with customers with respect to settlement of loans are also carried out by the authorised
personnet from collection team. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors.

An estimate of the lower of fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held and carrying amounts
of the financial assets as at the reporting date is shown below. This exciudes the value of collateral and other
security enhancements that are determined not to be enforceable {legally or practically) by the Company.
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Maximum Collaterals ,
Asat Associated
31 March 2019 (% lakhs) exposure to (Land & | NetExposure | "= pr
credit risk building)
Financial Assets
Cash & cash equivalents/ Bank
Balances 14,467 - 14,467 -
Loans & Advances (Gross) 301,309 884,268 {582,959} 4,578
Trade receivables 62 - 62 -
Financial Assets at FVTPL 31,238 - 31,238 -
Other financial asset 521 - 521 -
Total Financial Asset 347,597 884,268 {536,671) 4,578
As at Maximum Collaterals Associated
31 March 2018 (% lakhs) exposure to (Land & | Net Exposure | =) o
credit risk building)
Financial Assets
Cash & cash equivalents/ Bank
Balances 5,705 - 5,705 -
Loans & Advances (Gross) 1,90,814 4,65,702 (2,74,887) 3,326
Trade receivables 26 - 26 -
Financial Assets at FVTPL 4,742 - 4,742 -
Other financial asset 394 - 394 -
Total Financial Asset 2,01,681 4,65,702 (2,64,020) 3,326
As at Maximum Collaterals Associated
31 March 2017 (% lakhs) exposlun-e to (L;-mt.i & Net Exposure ECLs
credit risk building)
Financial Assets
Cash & cash equivalents/ Bank
Balances 6,148 - 6,148 -
Loans & Advances (Gross) 47,434 101,078 (53,644) 561
Trade receivables - - - -
Financial Assets at FVTPL 28,648 - 28,648 -
Other financial asset 87 - 87 -
Total Financial Asset 82,317 101,078 {18,761) 561

The value of the collateral for residential & commercial mortgage loans is based on the collateral value at

origination. For credit-impaired loans the value of collateral is based on the most recent appraisals.

The below tables provide an analysis of the current fair values of collateral held and credit enhancements for

stage 3 assets.
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Fair value of collateral and credit enhancements held under the base case scenario

Portfolio Loans Maximum Collaterals Net Exposure Associated
exposure to (Land & ECLs
credit risk huilding)
As at 31 March 2019 (X Lakhs) 6,197 10,786 (4,594) 2,540
As at 31 March 2018 (X Lakhs) 2,873 5,587 (2,714) 1,691
As at 31 March 2017 (% Lakhs) 74 98 (24) 11
Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company, though solvent, either does not have sufficient financial resources
available to meet its obligations as they fall due, or can secure them only at excessive costs. Liquidity risk
management involves estimating and managing the liquidity requirements of the Company within acceptable
structural boundaries and in a cost-efficient manner, and involves the Board and senior management’s
development and oversight of a comprehensive process that identifies, measures, monitors and controls the
Company’s liquidity risk exposure.

The Company maintains a reliable management information system designed to provide the senior management
with timely and forward-looking information on the ligquidity position of the Company. In terms of actions, the
Company’s liquidity risk management policy is guided by the following principles:

1. Lender diversification demonstrated by an increase in lenders, across instruments (bank finance, bonds, money
market instruments, sell down of loan portfolio of loan portfolio) and liquidity pools {banks, mutual funds,
insurance companies, pension funds, foreign portfolio investors)

2. Matching of asset and liability tenor
3, Maintenance of adequate liguidity buffer as per internal policy

4., Structural Hguidity mismatch

Tools to manage Liquidity Risk

The Company manages its liquidity risk through liquidity gap analysis, monitoring concentration limits {tenor,
counterparty and instrument type) and liquidity ratios.

Projected rolling cash flow for the next 6 months is prepared which provides a gap analysis of expected cash
inflow and outflow on a given date. Treasury is responsible to prepare a suitable funding plan based on the cash
flow.

Single fender limit, single financial instrument or category limit and negative gap mismatches are monitored on a
monthly basis to ensure these are within the policy limits.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and by having access to
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit {ines. The Company maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit lines to meet obligations when due.

Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their -
contractual maturities for all financial liabilities for which the contractual maturities are essential -for-arf

understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed in the table are the ¢ontractual .

undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as th}e'_‘:'i_rnpé_ct_ of
is not significant. ST
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Asat Within 1 year 1to5 years After 5 years Total
31 March 2019 {X lakhs)
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 782 - - 782
B i ther th bt
orrowings other than de 51,845 179,530 10,147 241,522
securities
Debt Securities 4,279 83,170 2,961 90,410
Other financial liabilities 19,252 ) ) 19,252
As at Within 1 year 1t05 years After 5 years Total
31 March 2018 (X lakhs) '
Financial liahilities
Trade payables 452 - - 452
Borrolw"mis other than debt 17,180 85,477 2303 104,960
securities
Debt Securities 1,759 45,881 - 47,640
Other ﬁnancial Iiab"ities 30,504 _ N 30]504
As at Within 1 year 1to5 years After 5 years Total
31 March 2017 (X lakhs)
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 334 - - 334
Borro.\«flnis other than debt 4,459 39,243 ) 43,702
securities
Debt Securities - - - -
Other financial liabilities 12,301 . i} 12,301

" The interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the table above reflect interest rates at the reporting
date and these amount may change as market interest rates change.

Financing arrangement

The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 Aprif 2017
(% lakhs) {Z lakhs) AR lakhs) . - |
Expiring within one year 72,000 1790 S - /
Expiring beyond one year (term loan) - - d\v g




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.
Subject to maintenance of satisfactory credit ratings, the bank loan facilities may be drawn at any time in X and
have an average maturity of 1 year (2018: 1 year, 2017: 1 year). The Company holds uncommitted line of credit
from the Holding Company of X 10,000 lakhs which was in the form of committed line of credit upto 31 March

2018,

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows related to financial instrument
that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates,
other prices). The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to currency risk, interest rate risk and

price risk.
Currency risk

The Company has insignificant amount of foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities. Accordingly, there
is no significant exposure to currency risk.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices
and related market variables whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer and
market.

To manage its price risk arising from investments, the Company has invested in the mutual fund after considering
the risk and return profile of the mutual funds i.e. the debt profile of the mutual fund indicates that the debt has
been given to creditworthy banks and other institutional parties and equity investment is made after considering
the performance of the stock. The Company’s exposure to price risk arises from investments in debt securities,
units of mutual funds, which are classified as financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss and amounts to

as follows:
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
(% lakhs) {% lakhs) (% lakhs)
Exposure to price risk 31,238 4,742 28,648

Sensitivity analysis

The table below sets out the effect on profit or loss due to reasonable possible weakening / strengthening in

prices of 5% :
Effect on profit or loss
Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(% lakhs) {X lakhs)
Impact on profit before tax for 5% increase in prices {260) (40)
Impact on profit before tax for 5% decrease in prices 260 40

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk is the vuinerability of the Company’s financial condition to adverse movements in market
interest rates. it corresponds to the potential effects of interest rate changes on the Company's profitability, in
particular net interest income. Exposure to this risk primarily results from timing spread in the re-pricing bf"both‘ .
on and off-balance sheet assets and liabilities as they mature (fixed rate instruments) or contractual re-pricing”
ting rate instruments). The objective of interest rate risk policy is to establish boundaries on interest rate risk "
3 for the Company and the governance and monitoring policies for interest rate risk management. 0‘1/ -
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The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 Aprit 2017
(% lakhs) {% lakhs) (X takhs)

Fixed rate borrowings

Debt Securities 71,300 37,000 -

Borrowings 8 200 10.500 2,500
Variable rate borrowings 193,750 85 250 32,250
Total horrowings 273,250 132,750 34,750

The following metrics are employed for measurement of interest rate risks:

Reprising Gap analysis — measured by calculating gaps over different time intervals as at a given date, and
measures mismatches between rate sensitive liabilities and rate sensitive assets {including off-balance sheet

positions).

Sensitivity analysis — interest rate sensitivity is monitored as per interest rate simulations, viz. potential loss
due to an adverse movement in interest rates of 100 bps for mismatch up to 1 year.

Sensitivity analysis

Particulars Effect on profit or loss
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(% lakhs) {% lakhs)
Impact on profit before tax for 100 bps increase in interest rates {1,938) {853)
Impact on profit before tax for 100 bps decrease in interest rates 1,938 853
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Financial [nstrument

a. Classification and Fair Values of Financial Assets & Liabilities

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair vaiues of financial assets and financial liabilities as at
reporting date :

As at As at As at
Financial instruments by category 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 01 April 2017
(% lakhs) (X lakhs) {% lakhs)
FVTPL Amaortised EVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost Cost
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalent - 9,461 - 349 - 1,603
Bank balances other than cash
and cash equivalent ) 5,006 ) 2356 i 4,545
Investments 31,238 - 4,742 - 28,648 -
Trade Receivables - 62 - 26 - -
Loans and advances to customers - 2,96,731 - 1,87,488 - 46,873
Other financial assets - 521 - 394 - 87
Total financial assets 31,238 3,11,781 4,742 1,93,613 28,648 53,108
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables - 782 - 452 - 334
Debt securities - 74,988 - 38,346 - -
Borrowing other than debt : 2,01,111 . 95,525 . 34,638
Other financial liabilities - 19,252 - 30,504 - 12,301
Total financial liabilities - 2,96,133 - 1,64,827 - 47,273

Fair Value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivaient, trade
receivables, loans and advances to customers, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

b. Fair value hierarchy

As per Ind AS 107, 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures', the fair values of the financial assets or financial
liabilities are defined as the price that would be received on sale of asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that
are either observable or unobservable. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities and lowest priority to uncbservable inputs.

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognized and measured at fair value and {b) measured at amortised cost and for
which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the-three
levels prescribed under the Ind AS 107. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

The hierarchy used is as follows :
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Level 2 — Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 — Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined
in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Level 2
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March | 31 March 01 April
2019 2018 2017
(X lakhs) (% lakhs) {% lakhs)
Investments 31,238 4,742 28,648
Total 31,238 4,742 28,648

Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost at each reporting date

31 March 2019 (X lakhs)
Particulars Carrying Fair value
Value Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans and advances to customers * 296,731 -| 296,731
Other financial assets 521 517
Total 297,252 -| 297,248
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Debt securities 74,988 - 74,402
Borrowing other than debt securities 201,111 - 201,111
Total 276,099 - 275,513
Particulars 31 March 2018 (X lakhs)
Carrying Fair value
Value Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans and advances to customers * 187,488 - 187,488
Other financial assets 394 - 394
Total 187,882 -{ 187,882
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Debt securities 38,346 - 38,230
Borrowing other than debt securities 95,525 - 95,525
Total 133,871

-| 133,755
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Particulars 31 March 2017 (% lakhs)
Carrying Fair value
Value Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans and advances to customers * 46,873 - 46,873
Other financial assets 87 - 87
Total 46,960 - 46,960

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Debt securities - - -

Borrowing other than debt securities 34,638 - 34,638

Total _ 34,638 - 34,638
* Gross value of portfolio loans.

Following discounting factor are used for calculation of fair values:

Particulars Discounting factors

Loans and advances to customers Average loan boarding rate for respective product for recent
four months as at reporting date

Other financial assets, Debt securities, | Average cost of funds as at reporting date
Borrowing other than debt securities

Valuation technigues used to determine fair value

Each class of financial
assets Techniques

The fair value is determined by applying direct quotes available from the
Government securities active market for such securities.

Net Asset Value (NAV) declared by the mutual fund at which units are issued
Units of mutual funds or redeemed

The fair value for such securities is determined by applying benchmark
quotes for such securities published by market aggregators on daily basis for
Certificate of Deposits relevant maturities,

Discounted cash flow based on present value of the expected future
economic benefit and fair value as determined by the management based on
MIS review, audited financial statements and information available in public
Equity shares domain

In order to assess Level 3 valuations as per Company’s investment policy, the management reviews the
performance of the investee companies on a regular basis by tracking their latest available financial
statemnents / financial information, valuation report of independent valuers, recent transaction results etc.
which are considered in valuation process.

The finance department of the Company includes the team that performs the valuation of financial assets
and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value. Discussions on valuation
processes and results are held between the valuation team and the senior management at Ieast once every
six months which is in line with the Company’s half yearly reporting periods. :
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49. Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

Particular As at As at

31 March 2019 (X lakhs) 31 March 2018 (% lakhs}
Assets 1:\’ r::::lh 12Anf1t:|:th Total 1;” rlr:::!:h ler:tc?;th Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9,461 - 9,461 349 - 349
S::hk;’;i?\i’;zigher than cash and 5,006 . 5,006 5,356 | 536
Investments 31,238 - 31,238 4,742 - 4,742
Trade receivables 62 - 62 26 - 26
Other financial assets 210 311 521 158 236 354
Loans and advances 8,583 2,88,148 2,96,731 6,615 1,80,873 | 1,87,488
Non Financial assets
Current tax assets (net) - 329 329 - 32 32
Deferred tax asset [net) - 1,497 1,497 - 1,287 1,287
Property, plant and equipment - 1,010 1,010 - 139 139
Intangibles assets - 84 84 - 10 16
Intangibles assets under ) ) ) ) ) )
development
Other non-financial assets - 823 823 - 347 347
Total Assets 54,560 2,92,202 3,46,762 17,246 1,82,924 | 2,00,170
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 782 - 782 452 - 452
Debt Securities - 74,988 74,988 - 38,346 38,346
Borrowings 41,780 1,59,331 2,01,111 19,875 75,650 95,525
Other financial liabilities 18,475 776 19,252 30,117 387 30,504
Non Financial liabilities '
Current tax liabilities (net) 7 - 7 65 - 65
Provisions “ 94 94 - 59 59
Other non financial liabilities 823 - 823 543 - 543
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Equity

Equity share capital - 24,536 24,536 - 18,527 19,527
Other equity - 25,169 25,169 - 15,149 15,149
Taotal liabilities 61,860 | 2,84,902 | 3,46,762 51,052 ( 1,49,118 | 2,00,170
Net {6,970) 6,970 (0) {33,806) 33,806 0

50. The Company has reclassified/regrouped previous year figures to conform to current year’s
classification, whete applicable.
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY NHB

The Company is required to provide additional disclosures in financial statements as required by
the Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEQ/2016 and NHB Directions 2010 issued by
National Housing Bank :

i. Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (‘CRAR’)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
(% lakhs) (% lakhs)

CRAR {%) 21.63% 24.15%
CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 21.10% 23.48%
CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%) 0.53% 0.67%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-1l capital - -
{only principle)

ii. Reserve Fund u/s 29 C of NHB Act, 1987
Please refer note 21

ifi.  Details of investments with movement in provision for depreciation

Particulars As at As at

31 March 31 March

2019 2018

(%X lakhs) (X lakhs)
Gross Value of Investments
In India 31,238 4,742
Outside India, . -
Provisions for Impairment
In India - -

Outside India, - -
Net Value of Investments
In India 31,238 4,742

Outside India, - -
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation
on investments

Opening balance - -
Add : Provisions made during the year - -
Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year - -
Closing balance - -

iv. Derivatives

The Company has not entered into any forward rate agreements, interest rate swaps, exchange
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Securitization, Direct Assignment, Financials Assets Sales and Purchase

a) Securitization

The Company has not entered into any agreement for securitisation. Hence, no disclosure is made for the

same.

b} Assignment

Details of Assignment transactions Undertaken by the Company during the year

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
{% lakhs) (% lakhs)

No. of accounts 669

Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 7,144

Aggregate consideration 7,144

Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts -

transferred in earlier years

Aggregate gain / loss over net book value -

€) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold

I. Details of non performing financial assets purchased during the year:

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

Aggregate outstanding
Of these, number of accounts restructured
Aggregate outstanding

31 March 2019 31 March 2019
(% lakhs) {% lakhs)
No. of accounts purchased during the year
NIL NIL

Details of non performing financial assets sold:

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(X lakhs) (% lakhs)
No. of accounts sold during the year 130 -
Aggregate outstanding 5,171 -
Aggregate consideration received 2,628 -
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vi.  Asset Liability Management (Maturity Pattern of certain items of Assets & Liability)

(X lakhs)
31-Mar- 31-Mar- | 31-Mar- | 31-Mar- 31-Mar- | 31-Mar-
Particulars 19 18 19 18 19 18
Advances* Investments* Borrowings*

Up to 30/31 days 41 43 5,004 5,406 {59) 0
Over 1 month upto 2 Months 462 473 0 0 1,022 0
Over 2 months upto 3months 505 517 2,458 4] 649 2,501
Over 3 months & up to 6 months 1,547 1,438 9,760 3,500 6,445 3,021
Over 6 Months & up to 1 year 3,255 2,678 19,225 1,070 33,795 13,940
Over 1 year & up to 3 years 15,568 12,009 0 0 145,042 68,234
Over 3 years & up to 5 years 19,721 15,130 H 0 73,842 44,308
Over 5 years 258,343 157,928 0 0 12,083 0

Total 299,442 190,216 36,447 9,976 272,819 132,404

* Represents interest bearing portfolio loans
In computing the above information, certain estimates and adjustments have been made by the management
which are consistent with the guidelines provided by National Housing Bank.

vii. Exposures

d) Exposure to real estate sector

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

{% lakhs) (% lakhs)
Direct exposure
Residential Mortgages - Lending fully secured by mortgages on
residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that
is rented
a) Individual housing loan upto Rs. 15 lakhs 40,342 23,966
b} Other 1,44,905 1,58,904
Commercial Real Estate - Lending secured by mortgages on commercial
real estates (office buildings, retail space, muiti-purpose commercial
prem!ses, F\ﬁulti~fi?mlly residential buildings, multl—tenante{.i Ft-)mmemal 117,077 8,806
premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, fand acquisition,
development and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non-
fund based limits
Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised
exposures - i )
a) Residential - -
b) Commercial Real Estate - -
Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other
securitised exposures -
Indirect Exposure - Fund based and non-fund based exposures on
National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 302,324 191,676

The Company provides loans which are fully collateralized against property, in accordance with the
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personal in case of salaried individuals. Accordingly, there is no direct real estate exposure except as
disclosed above.

e) Exposure to capital market

The Company has no exposure to the capital markets directly or indirectly in the current and previous year.
f) Details of financing of parent Company products

The Company does not finance any of it’s holding/parent Company products.

g) Details of financing of parent Company products

The Company has not lent / invested / lent and invested in any borrower / group of borrower in excess of
limits prescribed by the NHB.

h) Unsecured advances

Refer note 7 for unsecured advances. The Company has not given any advances against the rights, licenses,
authorizations, etc. ’

viil. Registration with other financial sector

Name of Regulator Status Registration Details
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority | Corporate Agent CA0492 valid till April
(IRDA) 30, 2020

ix. No penalties were imposed by NHB and other regulators during the current and previous year.

X. Refer note 35 for related party transactions during the current and previous year.

Xi. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year
For the year ended 31 | For the year ended
Particulars March 2019 31 March 2018
CARE CARE
T Non-convertible debentures(NCD) AA+ AA+
Term Loan {TL) AA+ AA+
ST Commercial Paper Al+ Al+

There were no migrations of ratings during the year. All the ratings are subject to annual surveillance.
Xii. Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies.

Refer Statement of Profit and Loss for profit or loss in current and previous year. The accounting policies
followed in preparations of financial statements are consistent with those of the previous year.

xiii. Revenue has been recognized in accordance with the revenue recognition policy of the Company and
there are no deviations to the same (refer note 1.c).
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Xiv.
Profit & Loss Account

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in the Statement of

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the

For the year

For the year

head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account ended ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(% lakhs) (X lakhs)

2. Provision made towards Income tax 458 524
3. Provision towards NPA 170 1,163
4. Provision for Standard Assets {with details like teaser loan,
CRE, CRE-RH etc)

-Housing {168) 245

-Non Housing {incl. CRE) 400 225
Total 860 2,157

The total provision carried by the Company in terms of paragraph 29 (2} of Housing Finance Companies
(NHB) Directions, 2010 and the National Housing bank (NHB} circular no. NHB {ND)/ DRS / pol-no. 09/2004-

05 dated 18 May, 2005 in respect of Housing and Non-Housing loans as follows:-

Housing

Non Housing

As at
31 March
2019
(X lakhs)

As at
31 March
2018
(X lakhs)

Break up of Loan & Advances and
Provisicns thereon

As at
31 March
2019
(X lakhs)

As at
31 March
2018
{% lakhs)

Standard Assets

a) Total Qutstanding Amount 167,997 102,268

125,247

85,076

b} Provisions made 553 509

626

438

Sub-Standard Assets

a) Total Qutstanding Amount 4,402 2,335

1,604

538

b) Provisions made 916 1,039

354

135

Doubtful Assets — Category-|

a} Total Outstanding Amount 190 -

b) Provisions made 75 -

Doubtful Assets - Category-li

a) Total Outstanding Amount - -

b) Provisions made - -

Doubtful Assets — Category-lil

a) Total Outstanding Amount - -

b} Provisions made - -

Loss Assets

a) Total Qutstanding Amount - -

b) Provisions made - -

TOTAL

a) Total Outstanding Amount 172,589 104,603

126,851

85,614

b} Provisions made 1,544 1,548

980

573
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xv. Draw down from reserves

The Company has not withdrawn any amount from any of the reserves during the year ended 31 March

2019 (31 March 2018: Nil; 1 April 2017: Nil)

Xvi. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

a) Concentration of Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the current and previous year. Also  there are no

outstanding deposits from earlier years.

b) Concentration of Advances

Particular For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(% 1akhs) (X lakhs)
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 12,945 10,172
Percentage of advances to twenty largest 4% 5%
borrowers to total advances of the Company
¢} Concentration of Exposure
Particular For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(% lakhs) (%X lakhs)
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 13,087 10,231
Percentage of advances to twenty largest 4% 5% |
borrowers to total advances of the Company
d) Concentration of Non Performing Accounts
Particular For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(X takhs) {% lakhs)
Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts 2,183 712
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e) Sector-wise Non performing accounts

Particular Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that
sector
Sector For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(% lakhs) (% lakhs)

Housing Loans
Individuals 2.7% 2.2%
Buider/Project loans/Corporates/other - -
Neon Housing Loans
Individuals 1.3% 0.6%
Buider/Project loans/Corporates/other - -

xvii. Movement of NPA’s, provision, net npa (op, add, reductions, closing)
Particutars For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(% lakhs) (% lakhs)
Net NPA to Net Advances (%) 1.63% 0.90%
Movement in Gross NPAs
{a) Opening Balance 2,873 75
{b) additions during the year 11,750 2,945
Sub Total (A) 14,623 3,020
{a) Up gradations 3,233 123
{b) Recoveries 3,707 6
{c) Write-Offs 1,486 18
Sub Total (B) 8,426 147
Gross NPAs as on 31 Mar (A-B) 6,197 2,873
Movement in provisions for NPAs
(a) Opening Balance 1,174 11
(b} Provisions made during the year 1,473 1,192
{c) Write off / Write back of excess provisions 1,303 29
(d) Closing Balance 1,345 1,174
Movement in Net NPAs
(a) Opening Balance 1,698 63
(b} additions during the year 10,277 1,753
(c) Reductions during the Year 7.123 118
(d) Closing Balance 4,852 1,698
xviii. In terms of requirement of NHB's Circular No. NHB (ND) /DRS/ Pol.Circular, 61/2013-14 dated 07 April,

2014 following information on Reserve Fund under section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

is provided :




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as

at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

Particulars

As at
31 March
2019
(X lakhs)

As at
31 March
2018
(% lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of the year
Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987%

220 -

Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(1){vili) of Income Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of
the NHB Act, 1887

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year
Add:
Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987*

i1 220

Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(1){viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of
the NHB Act, 1987

Less:
Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987*

Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36({1){viii} of Income Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of
the NHB Act, 1987

Balance at the end of the year
Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987*

231 220

Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36{1}{viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve u/s 25C of
the NHB Act, 1987

*As per Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to transfer at least
20% of its net profits every year to a statutory reserve before any dividend is declared. The Company
commenced commercial operations as Housing Finance Company during the financial year 2015-16. No
amount has been transferred to statutory reserve as the Company has incurred losses.

Xix. The Company has not invested in any overseas assets in the current and previous year. Also there are
no outstanding investments from earlier years.

XX. The Company has not sponsored any off-Balance Sheet SPV in the current and previous years which
were required to be consolidated as per accounting norms. Aiso there are no outstanding investments
from earlier years.




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as

at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

xxi.

Xxii.

Xxiil.

Disclosure on complaints

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 31 March
2019 2018
{X lakhs) {% lakhs)
a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 3 -
b) No. of complaints received during the year 68 10
c) No. of complaints redressed during the vear 64 7
d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 7 3
The details of frauds noticed / reported are as below:
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2019
(% lakhs) (% lakhs)
Amount Involved 73 18
Amount Recovered 1 -
Amount written off/provided 72 18
Balance - -

The Company has reclassified/regrouped previous year figures to
classification, where applicable.

conform to current vyear’s




